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Foreword from the Chairperson

Mfanozelwe Shozi 
Deputy Chairperson (Acting Chairperson)

It is a great pleasure to  present to all 
South Africans, the Commission for Gender 
Equality Annual Report for 2010/2011. This 
report emphasises that the mandate of the 
Commission for Gender Equality (CGE) as 
enshrined in the Constitution, CGE Act and 
PEPUDA has been fulfilled.

The Commission for Gender Equality is 
committed to a vision to create and maintain 
a society free from gender oppression and 
inequality. The Commission, through its staff 
and commissioners, is striving to promote 
the respect for gender equality and the  
protection, development and attainment 
of gender equality. In addition to the vision, 
mission, the Commission anchors its service 
delivery in its core values, namely, 

• Independence – we impartially perform our duties without fear or favour, mindful of 
the independence of our office.

• Professionalism – we timeously execute our responsibilities with utmost care and 
diligence, responsive to the society we serve.

• Accountability – we always give an account of our actions and decisions.

• Ethical behaviour – we maintain high standards of 

• Trustworthiness and Honesty,

•  Respect and Empathy, and

• Integrity. 
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During this financial year 2010-2011, the Commission successfully eradicated deficiencies 
in the domains of the control environment, the risk environment, communication and the 
monitoring environment. Through sound management strategies, the financial disposition of 
the CGE was rectified. 

Communication between staff and commissioners assisted the commission to deal with 
challenges that the commission has received.

The commission published a number of reports that deal with fundamental gender issues and 
challenged our government and private organisations on their gender equality agenda.

The Commission also focused advocating on thematic issues such as gender and poverty; 
gender-based violence;  gender democracy and good governance; gender, cultural, 
religious and traditional practices and gender and HIV and AIDS. 

In my capacity as acting chairperson, I would like to thank the offices of the Presidency, 
the Speaker and the Deputy Speaker, the Ministry for Women, Children and People with 
Disabilities, and SCOPA, for their support. 

This Annual Report is a testimony of the professionalism of our Commissioners and Secretariat. 
I want to express my sincere appreciation to all who have demonstrated and worked in 
unison to execute the commissions mandate.

                                        

Mr Mfanozelwe Shozi
Acting Chairperson
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Chief Executive Officer’s Overview

It is a momentous occasion to present 
to the nation, the Commission for 
Gender Equality’s 2010/2011 Annual 
Report. This presentation is made all the 
more profound because it includes an 
unqualified audit report by the Auditor 
General of South Africa. 

A clean audit represents a significant 
achievement and demonstrates a 
commitment that was undertaken 
in previous  periods by all at the 
Commission to tackle endemic 
weaknesses and issues of non-
compliance. The resolve stems from 
a turnaround strategy that was 
conceived and set in motion during 
the 2009/2010 financial year. There 
are still a number of matters which 
are emphasized in the audit report 
which reflect the challenges within 
the operations and management of 
the Commission. Our challenges lie in 
non-compliance with the regulations, 
governance and consequentially 
weaknesses in the business processes. 
However, in the current momentum for 
change, the Commission is on course 
to rectify and address these matters. 
The report of the AGSA gives details to 

this effect; and management has undertaken to tackle these with a more amplified vigor 
than ever before. The process of change is a dynamic evolution as it were and will therefore 
take time, resources and more importantly buy-in as well as support by all South Africans.

It is a well received notion that an effective performance on service delivery could only 
be achieved when management practices are prudent and consistent with all regulatory 
requirements. Having taken note of developments at the management level, in the ensuing 
paragraphs I draw the reader to some of the highlights and achievements made in pursuit 
of protection and promotion of gender equality. The successes were made, amid working 
with very limited resources, a sign for improvements in efficiency and productivity resulting 
from the commitments by the internal stakeholders. 
We thank and salute all the contributions.

The highlights that follow are indicative that the institution has turned over a new leaf and 
now more closely fulfils its legislative mandate:
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The Monitoring Role

Part of the CGE’s monitoring role include holding public hearings with all organs of state 
which include public sector, private sector and civil society in order to raise awareness, 
identify challenges and come up with recommendations that will ensure the realization 
of gender equality and the implementation of both international agreements and our 
domestic laws. 

Recent Employment Equity hearings that the CGE undertook were intended to achieve 
its monitoring mandate. This comes especially after considering the Employment Equity 
Commission and the Public Service Commission research findings into transformation in 
the workplace which revealed that both the public and private sector were performing 
poorly with regard to transformation from gender and disability perspectives. This was 
despite comprehensive array of Constitutional provisions and mechanisms, ratification of 
international and regional treaties, and domestication of these into national legislation.  

In accordance with its monitoring role, the Commission convened a two-day hearing with 
a sample of Director Generals (DGs) from the public sector, and Chief Executive Officers 
(CEOs) from the private sector. The CGE required that they account for the slow pace 
of gender transformation in the workplace, and inadequate promotion of women with 
disabilities, gender equality and empowering women. 

These hearings also served as a platform to establish what challenges are being experienced 
and measures put in place by government departments and the private sector to comply 
with employment equity requirements relating to gender and disability. 
The standards and measures for this analysis were according to those  provided in the 
Employment Equity Act 55 of 1998, and the Promotion of Equality and Prevention of Unfair 
Discrimination Act 4 of 2000.  
 
State compliance with international instruments

For the period under review, the Commission prepared a number of reports on a number of 
instruments, conventions and treaties that SA has signed and/or acceded to.

The Convention of Elimination Discrimination against Women (CEDAW) Report was prepared 
by the Commission on South Africa’s Implementation of CEDAW which was shared with 
Parliament. This report further culminated in an engagement with the CEDAW Committee 
at the Pre-Session that was held in New York. The CGE is classified by the UN as a National 
Human Rights Institution (NHRI) in terms of the Paris Principles, with a specific mandate to 
deal with gender equality and women’s rights issues. 

The Millennium Development Goals (MDGs) Report assessed from a gender perspective 
the progress made by South Africa with regard to MDG commitments. It specifically 
reviewed state interventions in pursuit of goal three of the MDGs, on gender equality and 
women’s empowerment, and equally assesses the gendered impact of the state’s progress 
regarding the other seven goals’ targets. The Commission further shared its draft findings in 
a consultative dialogue with a broad range of stakeholders from government departments, 
including Statistics South Africa, to gender analysts and experts as well as civil society. This 
dialogue proved very successful and the Commission received substantive feedback and 
input from these stakeholders.  
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“Mock Trial” was a session, and rehearsal of sorts, aimed at giving the new Minister for 
the Department of Women Children and People with Disabilities and her delegation 
a constructive dialogue with CEDAW Committee experts. The Mock Trial served as a 
mechanism to help them fulfill their obligations under the CEDAW Convention. The purpose 
was to enhance cohesiveness of the performance of the delegation during the CEDAW 
Geneva reporting process. 

Protection of Gender Equality rights

Through its Legal Department, the Commission has investigated gender related complaints. 
This year saw a reduction of files pending from 215 in the previous financial year to 188 for 
the year under review. Legislative submissions were made to Parliament and other bodies 
pertaining to gender rights. Some of our contributions focused on issues such as the Choice 
on Termination of Pregnancy Amendment Bill, Prevention and Combating of Trafficking in 
Persons Bill and inputs into draft White papers on the traditional practices of Ukuthwala and 
initiation.

In the Promotion and awareness raising

Various campaigns and dialogues were undertaken on Human trafficking, Millennium 
Development goals, implementation of the UN Special Rapporteur‘s report on violence 
against women and, gender and energy.

Finally, in order to progressively attain genuine gender equality and eradicate discriminatory 
practices based on gender, it is my understanding that it is desirable that the CGE catalytically 
work with all stakeholders, but remain assertive and preserve its independence. To this end, 
we will in the New Year firstly revise and update our strategic plan, reposition the image 
of the organization as well as ensure that its dignity and independence is protected as is 
required by the Constitution. And last but certainly not least, the Commission continues the 
implementation of a turnaround strategy. 

All these dreams shall be realized if we embrace the spirit and purport of the Constitution. 
This cannot be seen as an arduous task, but one which we must champion, given that the 
role of the Commission is so closely tied to the spirit and the letter of our Constitution. For the 
sake of our hard earned democracy, all parts of our dynamic society must work together. 

____________________________

Ms Keketso Maema
Chief Executive Officer
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Audit Committee and Membership

The Committe is  pleased to present its report for the financial year ended 31 March 2011

Audit Committee members and attendance 

The Audit Committee for the year under review comprised three external member and 
two internal members. The members of the Audit Committee are listed below. The Audit 
Committee is required to meet at least four times a year according to its approved Terms 
of Reference (TOR). During the current year the committee held five meetings. As reported 
in the previous annual report, the chairperson of the committee resigned in March 2010. 
For the period April to June 2010 Ms Rael Hamisi acted as interim chairperson, until the 
appointment of Mr Velile Kweyama, who commenced duties in July 2010. 

Name of Member Designation Number of meetings 
attended

Mr Velile Kweyama Chairperson (External) 04

Ms Rael Hamisi Member (External) 05

Mr Aluwani Munyamela Member (External) 04

Commissioner Ndileka 
Loyilane

Member (Internal) 05

Commissioner Janine Hicks Member (Internal) 03
 

Audit committee responsibility
A formal TOR has been adopted in the committee’s charter which is in line with the 
requirements of Sections 38 (1) (a) and 77 of the Public Finance Management Act No. 1 of 
1999 and Treasury Regulation 3.1. It can further be reported that all affairs were conducted 
in compliance with the charter.

Effectiveness of internal control 
The Commission has designed a system of internal control to provide cost-effective assurance 
that its goals will be achieved economically, effectively and efficiently.

In line with the PFMA, the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal 
Auditing issued by the Institute of Internal Auditors and the King III Report on Corporate 
Governance requirements, Internal Audit provided the Audit Committee and management 
with the assurance as to whether internal controls were appropriate and effective. The 
system of internal control was not entirely effective during the year under review. Several 
deficiencies in the system of internal control were reported by the internal audit section and 
the Auditor General of South Africa. Some of the matters which were reported previously, 
have been fully and satisfactorily addressed. 

Despite this, nothing significant and/or material has been brought to  the attention of the 
committee to indicate a meaningful breakdown in the functioning of these controls until 31 
March 2011, except for the following:
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• The Chief Executive Officer (Accounting Officer) was permanently appointed on 1 
August 2010.

• The Chief Financial Officer has been acting in that position for the financial year under 
review.

• An AGSA investigation was conducted into allegations of irregularities concerning 
the financial management of the commission for the period 1 April 2007 to 31 March 
2009. The report was tabled by management for consideration by the committee. The 
committee satisfied itself that an action plan which  was developed by management 
would  adequately address the weaknesses highlighted in the report.

• The Audit Committee has taken note of the Public Protector’s investigation into 
allegations of misconduct and maladministration during the period between 1 April 
2007 and 31 March 2009.

Accordingly, with the exception of the reported deficiencies and deviations, the committee 
reports that the system of internal control over financial reporting for the period under review 
was adequate, effective and efficient.

Internal Audit 
The internal audit function was not operational for the period May to October 2010, following 
the resignation of Mr Patrick Mathobo (internal auditor) in April 2010. He was succeeded by 
Mr Cedric Seaba whose appointment became effective on 1 November 2010.  The internal 
audit completed and finalised all the projects according to the approved interim audit 
plan.

Risk Management 
Management is responsible for proactively identifying, evaluating, managing and 
monitoring all significant risks faced by the Commission. The Commission has developed a 
comprehensive risk management policy to ensure  safeguarding its staff, assets, corporate 
credibility and reputation.

Evaluation of Financial Statements

Although it has been noted that there are pending litigations against the Commission, 
which were instituted by service providers  previously appointed by the Commission, the 
committee concurs with the adoption of the going concern premise in the preparation of 
annual financial statements as appropriate.

Appreciation 

The committee wishes to express its appreciation to the Commission’s officials and the office 
of the Auditor General for the support they have provided during the course of the year.

.............................................
Mr Velile Kweyama
Audit Committee chairperson



10

ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011
 Commission for Gender Equality  

2010 - 2011 2010 - 2011

1. Corporate Governance

1.1 The commission:  

The Commission is composed of Commissioners who in terms of the CGE Act   are the 
chairperson, the Deputy Chairperson and Commissioners. The Deputy Chairperson is 
appointed internally by Commissioners. The position of Chairperson has been vacant since 
3 August 2009.  The Deputy Chairperson has been acting in this capacity since 4 August 
2009.

The secretariat consists of the CEO and staff. The plenary of Commissioners appoints the 
CEO who in turn appoints staff to support the functioning of the commission. The CEO was 
appointed in August 2010.

The CGE has three programmatic departments, namely Legal, Research and Public 
Education and Information. Each department has officers who are responsible for the roll-
out of the programmes of the commission. The officers are based in provinces, which are 
managed by Provincial Co-ordinators.

1.2 Plenary sessions:  

The Commissioners attended a plenary session once a quarter to ascertain progress with 
the strategic objectives as outlined in the strategic plan 2008/13 and the programme of 
action that was adopted.  

The objective of the plenary sittings is to exercise the Commissioners’ fiduciary responsibilities 
as well as their oversight role within the commission. Commissioners regularly assess policies 
and practices to ensure that these are consistent with the mandate of the Commission.  In 
a quest to achieve its mandate, the commission bases its strategic framework on six key 
themes, namely:

• Gender and poverty;

• Gender-based violence;

• Gender, democracy and good governance;

• Gender, culture, religion and traditional practices;

• Gender and HIV and AIDS; and

• National Gender Machinery.

The service delivery programmes of the Commission are rendered through three core 
functions:

• Public Education and information; 

• Legal Services; and 

• Policy and Research. 

These departments are supported by Finance and Administration, Human Resources, 
Information Technology and Communications.
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1.3 Thematic committees:

• Gender and Poverty: led by Commissioner Yvette Abrahams

• Gender-based violence: led by Commissioner Mfanozelwe Shozi 

• Gender, Democracy and Good Governance: led by Commissioner Janine Hicks

• Gender, Culture, Religion and Tradition: led by Commissioner Rosieda Shabodien/
Commissioner Ndileka Loyilane

• Gender and HIV and AIDS: led by Commissioner Teboho Maitse

• National Gender Machinery: led by Commissioner Boogie Khutsoane/Commissioner 
Kenosi Meruti.

These committees are guided by each thematic committee’s Terms of Reference developed 
by the lead commissioner of the theme.  These committees provide strategic guidance and 
support to the programmatic work of the CGE.

1.4 Standing committees in the Commission are: 

• Management committee: led by the CEO

• Finance committee: led by Commissioner Yvette  Abrahams

• Human Resources committee: led by Commissioner Kenosi  Meruti

• Information Technology and Communications committee: led by Commissioner 
Ndileka Loyilane.

• Good Governance Committee: Led by Commissioner Yvette Abrahams.

• Strategic Planning, Annual Report and Monitoring and Evaluation Committee: led by 
Commissioner Mfanozelwe Shozi.
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2. General Information on the Commission for Gender   
Equality

2.1 VISION AND MISSION

OUR VISION

A society free from all forms of gender oppression and inequality.

OUR MISSION  

To promote, protect, monitor and evaluate gender equality through undertaking research, 
public education, policy development, legislative initiatives, effective monitoring and 
litigation.  

2.2 Legislative Mandate 

2.2.1 Establishment and Governing Principles

The Commission for Gender Equality is a state institution which together with five similar 
institutions, has been established to “strengthen constitutional democracy in the Republic.” 
The Commission is an independent institution that is subject only to the Constitution and the 
Law of South Africa, and is accountable to the National Assembly.
A positive constitutional duty is placed upon all “other organs of state, through legislative 
and other measures” to “ensure” that the CGE is “effective”. 

2.2.2 Constitutional obligation – Gender equality

The Constitution expressly states that the Bill of Rights is a cornerstone of democracy, which 
enshrines the rights of all people to the democratic values of human dignity, equality and 
freedom, and that the state must respect, protect, promote and fulfil these rights. 

The CGE’s obligation to strengthen constitutional democracy is focused on the attainment 
of gender equality. This recognises the present status of gender inequality in the Republic, 
which necessitates positive discrimination in favour of the disadvantaged gender in both 
public and private sector to attain gender equality. Establishing a constitutional institution 
with the sole purpose of attaining gender equality implies the recognition that gender 
equality would not be achieved if treated as a generalised human right. This ensures that 
the attainment of gender equality is given precedence by its separate identification.

Section 187(1) of the Constitution of South Africa reads: “The Commission for Gender 
Equality must promote respect for gender equality and the protection, development and 
attainment of gender equality.”

The CGE is a catalyst for the attainment of gender equality. Section 187(2) grants the CGE 
“the power, as regulated by national legislation, necessary to perform its functions, including 
the power to monitor, investigate, research, educate, lobby, advise and report on issues 
concerning gender equality.”

In addition, the CGE has the power, in terms of Section 20(1)(f), to institute proceedings in 
terms of the Promotion of Equality and Prevention of Unfair Discrimination Act 4, 2000.
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2.2.3 Commission on Gender Equality Act 39 of 1996

Section 11 of the Act on powers and functions of the Commission state:

In order to achieve its object referred to in section 119(3) of the Interim Constitution, the 
Commission:
         

a. shall monitor and evaluate policies and practices of organs of state at any level; 
statutory bodies or functionaries; public bodies and authorities; and private businesses, 
enterprises and institutions, in order to promote gender equality and may make any 
recommendations that the Commission deems necessary;

b. shall develop, conduct or manage information programmes; and education 
programmes, to foster public understanding of matters pertaining to the promotion of 
gender equality and the role and activities of the Commission;

c. shall evaluate any Act of Parliament; any system of personal and family law or custom; 
any system of indigenous law customs or practices; or any other law, in force at the 
commencement of this Act or any law proposed by Parliament or any other legislature 
after the commencement  of this Act, affecting or likely to affect gender equality or the 
status of women and make recommendations to Parliament or such other legislature 
with regard thereto;

d. may recommend to Parliament or any other legislature the adoption of new legislation 
which would promote gender equality and the status of women;

e. shall investigate any gender-related issues of its own accord or on receipt of a 
complaint, and shall endeavour to resolve any dispute; or rectify any Act or omission, 
by mediation, conciliation or negotiation: Provided that the Commission may at any 
stage refer any matter to -

A. the Human Rights Commission to deal with it in accordance with the provisions   
  of the Constitution and the law;

B. the Public Protector to deal with it in accordance with the provisions of the 

C. Constitution and the law; or any other authority, whichever is appropriate;

f. shall as far as is practicable maintain close liaison with institutions, bodies or authorities 
with similar objectives to the Commission, in order to foster common policies and 
practices and to promote co-operation in relation to the handling of complaints in 
cases of overlapping jurisdiction or other appropriate instances;

g. shall liaise and interact with any organisation which actively promotes gender equality 
and other sectors of civil society to further the object of the Commission;

h. shall monitor the compliance with international conventions, international covenants 
and international charters, acceded to or ratified by the Republic, relating to the 
object of the Commission;

i. shall prepare and submit reports to Parliament pertaining to any such convention, 
covenant or charter relating to the object of the Commission;
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j. may conduct research or cause research to be conducted to further the object of the 
Commission;

k. may consider such recommendations, suggestions and requests concerning the 
promotion of gender equality as it may receive from any source.

2.3 Primary Objectives 

In order to fulfil its mandate as outlined in the Constitution and to be effective in its 
responsibilities, the CGE pursues the following primary objectives:

• To develop effective monitoring mechanisms to ensure that gender sensitive strategies 
and policy programmes are implemented in public and private institutions;

• To develop, conduct and manage information and education programmes to foster 
public understanding on matters pertaining to gender equality and the roles and 
activities of the Commission;

• To monitor and evaluate any act of parliament, law or treaty that affects, or is likely 
to affect gender equality or the status of women and making recommendations to 
parliament or the relevant legislative body with regard hereto;

• To investigate any gender-related issue on its own accord or on receipt of a complaint 
and endeavour to resolve any dispute or rectify any act or omission;

• To create international, regional and national strategic links to ensure mutual support 
and effective collaboration to promote gender equality; and

• To create appropriate internal structures to promote a sustainable and effective 
functioning commission. 
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2.4 Organisational Structure

2.4.1 The Accounting Authority

The Commission is composed of Commissioners who according to the CGE Act are the 
Chairperson, the Deputy Chairperson and Commissioners. The Chief Executive Officer 
(CEO) of the commission is invited into the plenary meetings of the Commission as an ex 
officio member. In addition, the staff is appointed to support the day-to-day operations of 
the Accounting Authority as an organ of governance within the commission.  

Chairperson

Deputy
Chairperson

Commissioners

Chief Executive
Officer: Ex 

Officio Member
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2.4.2 THE SECRETARIAT

CEO: Level 14

COO (Vacant)

Personal 
Assistants

HOD: HR:
Level 13

Deputy Director:
Level 11

Administrative
Officer Education

Officer

Research
Officer

Administrative
officer PEI

Administrative
officer 

Communications

Administrative
officer 

Resource Centre
Manager

Communications
Officer

Senior Human
Resource

Practictioner

Deputy Director:
Level 11

Deputy Director:
Level 11

IT Specialist

Legal Officer

Administrative
Officer

Administrative
Officer

Office Assistant

Accounts Clerk

Driver

2XDeputy 
Director

2XAssistant 
Director

Deputy Director:
Investigations

Level 11

Deputy Director:
Legal Researcher

Level 11

Parliamentary
Liaison Officer

Level 11

HOD: Education:
Level 13

Internal Auditor:
Level 11

HOD: Research:
Level 13

HOD: Legal:
Level 13

IT Manager:
Level 11

CFO: Level 13

Education 
Officers

Legal Officers

Provincial
Coordinators x9

Research
Officers

Office
Assistant

Administrative
Officers
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 3. SERVICE DELIVERY OVERVIEW

3.1 Relevancies and key focal points of bills and matters submitted to parliament and   
 legislatures

BILL DEPARTMENT/
PORTFOLIO 
COMMITTEE

TOPIC

Correctional 
Matters 
Amendment 
Bill 
 May 2010

Committee on 
Correctional 
Services

This Bill aims to amend certain provisions of the 
Correctional Services Act in order to increase 
labour programmes for correctional clients and 
reduce the time correctional clients spend in cells.

The CGE supported the proposed amendments 
in the belief that meaningful rehabilitation 
outcomes would be realised with intensive labour 
interventions.

Choice on 
Termination 
of Pregnancy 
Amendment 
Bill
28 May 2010

Committee on 
Private Member’s 
Legislative 
Proposals and 
Special Petitions

This Bill was introduced by a member of 
Parliament and sought to expand on Section 3 of 
the Choice on Termination of Pregnancy Act 92 
of 1996.

The CGE supported this Bill because the 
amendments seek to ensure adequate 
counseling, as well as   increased access to the 
latest technology for pregnant women who wish 
to terminate pregnancies. These amendments 
are designed to ensure that quality information is 
provided to women in such circumstances.

South African 
Reserve Bank 
Amendment 
Bill
31 May 2010

Committee on 
Finance 

The purpose of this Bill is to prevent shareholders 
of the South African Reserve Bank (SARB) from 
circumventing provisions of the existing Act which 
prohibits the procurement of more than ten 
thousand shares per shareholder and also clarifies 
the powers and functions assigned to the Board 
of the SARB

The CGE proposed amendments and 
recommendations that would allow SARB to 
exercise increased supervision over the domestic 
banking sector. This is necessary to curb high bank 
charges because such conduct impoverishes the 
disadvantaged and more especially women and 
children who have to survive on meagre incomes 
or social support.
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BILL DEPARTMENT/
PORTFOLIO 
COMMITTEE

TOPIC

Draft White 
Paper on 
Ukuthwala
9 June 2010

The Department 
of Co-operative 
Governance and 
Traditional Affairs 

The Draft Paper sets out policy issues that the 
Department wishes to address on Ukuthwala.
The CGE was in support of a White Paper on 
Ukuthwala and provided responses to the 
Department which are informed by information 
collated in a CGE Interim Report on Ukuthwala. 
The CGE also took this opportunity to clarify 
additional gender-related issues that should be 
refined and included in the Green Paper on 
Ukuthwala.

The Municipal 
Systems Draft 
Amendment 
Bill
14 June 2010

The Department 
of Co-operative 
Governance and 
Traditional Affairs 

The aim of this Bill is to amend the Municipal 
Systems Act of 2000 in order to enhance 
accountability and transparency in the 
appointment of municipal managers. 

In its submission to the Department the CGE 
recommended stimulating gender awareness 
relating to the Municipal Systems Act so that 
services and budget allocations take cognisance 
of a need to promote gender equality within 
municipalities. 

Draft White 
Paper on 
Initiation
9 July 2010

The Department 
of Co-operative 
Governance and 
Traditional Affairs

This draft policy document seeks to outline issues 
that will regulate initiation practices in South 
Africa.

The CGE was supportive of an initiative by the 
Department of Co-operative Governance and 
Traditional Affairs (COGTA) to stimulate discussion 
on an issue that has serious gender implications. 
Furthermore, the CGE took this opportunity to 
expand on gender related policy issues that 
required the attention of COGTA. The focus of the 
CGE was to provide a wide range of human rights 
standards and norms which must be considered 
as possible benchmarks for various cultural and 
religious practices  as rites to adulthood or to any 
change in life.

Births and 
Deaths 
Registration 
Amendment 
Bill
6 August 2010

Portfolio Committee 
on Home Affairs 

The object of this Bill is to amend the Births and 
Deaths Registration Act of 1992 in order to allow 
for designated undertakers to record deaths, 
align the existing Act to the Children’s Act and 
regulate the manner in which notice of death 
may be given.

This Bill is procedural in nature and the CGE 
supported the proposed amendments.
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Citizenship 
Amendment 
Bill 
6 August 2010

Committee on 
Home Affairs

This Bill is intended to revise the South African 
Citizenship Act 88 of 1995 in respect of provisions 
relating to the acquisition of citizenship by birth, 
descent or naturalisation.

The CGE expressed a concern about the fact that 
the absence of a definition of “trafficked persons” 
in the Bill allows for a category of individuals to be 
prejudiced when being considered for citizenship. 

Prevention 
and 
Combating of 
Trafficking in 
Persons Bill
20 August 
2010

Department 
of Justice and 
Constitutional 
Development

The purpose of this Bill is to give effect to the 
United Nations Protocol to Prevent, Suppress and 
Punish Trafficking in Persons. 

A literature review and collaboration with relevant 
partners indicate that victims of human trafficking 
are predominantly women, girls and children. 
Accordingly, the CGE proposed a wide range of 
recommendations designed to curb trafficking of 
humans and also address secondary victimisation 
of persons who have been trafficked into South 
Africa. 

An oral submission was made in Parliament on 
behalf of the CGE by Commissioner Y. Abrahams 
on 24 August 2010.

Protection 
from 
Harassment 
Bill
30 September 
2010

Committee on 
Justice and 
Constitutional 
Development

This Bill originates from a South African Law Reform 
Commission investigation into stalking behaviour, 
entitled Project 130. The investigation found that 
existing legislative remedies such as interdicts 
(civil law) and the Domestic Violence Act , as 
well as criminal law provisions such as Section 
384 of the Criminal Procedure Act of 1955, are 
inadequate to protect people who are victims of 
stalking behaviour. Therefore, this Bill was deemed 
necessary.

The CGE submission was two-fold. Firstly it did not 
support a restricted approach to harassment, 
which is limited to stalking. The view expressed 
by the CGE is one that considers harassment 
to include sexual harassment, unreasonable 
invasions into privacy such as access to cell 
phone details of individuals being obtained by 
retailers and cyber-stalking.
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Secondly, despite the reservations of the CGE on 
the narrow approach taken to stalking, this Bill 
was supported because it would protect women 
and children, as well as others who are often 
victims of stalking but lack effective remedies.

Correctional 
Matters 
Amendment 
Bill
3 December 
2010

Committee on 
Correctional 
Services 

The purpose of this Bill is to change certain 
provisions of the Correctional Services 
Amendment Act of 2008 and the Correctional 
Services Act of 1998 relating to parole and 
detention of offenders. 

The CGE took cognisance of the fact that the 
provisions of the Bill applied equally to men 
and women. The recommendations of the CGE 
were aimed at substantive support in respect 
of the proposals made by the Department of 
Correctional Services. Accordingly, the CGE 
proposed that obligations placed on the 
Commissioner for Corrections should be stated 
in positive terms. This would ensure compliance 
with the proposed legislation. Furthermore, the 
CGE proposed that changes in policy relating 
to parole should accommodate gender 
perspectives. This would entail considering parole 
for female offenders earlier on account of their 
maternal responsibilities which are different from 
those of men.

Draft Basic 
Conditions of 
Employment 
Bill (BCEA)
15 February 
2011

Department of 
Labour 

This Bill seeks to make numerous changes to the 
BCEA. These include the revision of provisions 
relating to benefits paid to  contract   workers, 
prohibition of certain conduct by employers and 
addressing child labour.

The CGE was supportive of this Bill and took the 
opportunity to propose that the Minister should 
consider making sectoral determinations where 
workers are not covered. This will give the CGE an 
opportunity to advocate for a determination by 
the Minister to offer maternity benefits to sectors 
that are not covered. This will promote gender 
equity in the workplace.

Draft 
Employment 
Equity Bill 
(EEB)
15 February 
2011

Department of 
Labour

Firstly, this Bill is designed to amend the Principal 
Act in order to address certain discriminatory 
practices such as differential remuneration for 
similar work. Secondly, it proposes the imposition 
of fines for certain contraventions by employers.
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The proposed amendments were supported 
by the CGE on the basis that equality is being 
promoted and suitable fines would act as 
effective deterrence in respect of contraventions 
by employers.

Draft Labour 
Relations Bill
15 February 
2011

Department of 
Labour

This Draft Bill seeks to insert certain definitions 
into the Principal Act and also align the existing 
statute in order to extend protection to contract 
workers. 

The CGE made recommendations aimed at 
addressing numerous exploitative practices 
which infringe the right to equal treatment in the 
workplace.

Draft 
Employment 
Services  Bill
15 February 
2011

Department of 
Labour

The Employment Services Bill(ESB) is a new piece 
of legislation designed to increase access to 
employment in the public service. The proposed 
Bill seeks to provide for structures such as public 
employment services, registration of private 
employment services and the establishment of 
Productivity South Africa.

The CGE is not in favour of this Bill because it does 
not define key terminology such as “employment 
agencies” and the role of employment services. 
These inadequacies will allow for untenable 
practices such as labour broking to proliferate 
under the guise of employment agencies and 
employment services. These practices undermine 
equality and are perceived as   promoting 
hardship among ordinary workers. Therefore, the 
proposed legislation cannot be supported.
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 3.2 Official visits abroad including dates and purpose

Date Place Purpose

11 – 16 June 2010 New York, USA Commissioner Boogie 

Khutsoane attended a 

session at the UN on “The 

General Assembly hearings 

with NGOs, Civil Society, 

on MDG’s and the Private 

Sector”. 

30 July - 7 August 2010 New York, USA One commissioner and two 

staff members met with 

the CEDAW committee to 

discuss the Commission’s  

report to the CEDAW 

committee on South 

Africa’s implementation of 

CEDAW from 1998 to 2008.

18 - 26 January 2011 Geneva, Switzerland One commissioner, the 

acting CEO and two staff 

members attended the 

CEDAW committee session 

where countries reported 

on their implementation of 

CEDAW.

1 -14 March 2011 New York, USA Two commissioners 

attended the 55th session 

on the Commission on the 

Status of Women (CSW)
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3.3 Review of Legal Department Service Delivery

The Legal Department investigates complaints received and identifies areas of systemic 
gender discrimination. 

It evaluates laws, customs and practices that affect gender equality and/or the status of 
women. The department collaborates with other institutions or bodies with similar objectives, 
such as the South African Law Reform Commission. It litigates in high courts as amicus curiae 
and lodge cases at the Equality courts.

3.4 Review of Public Education and Information Service Delivery

The Public Education and Information (PEI) department achieved the strategic objectives 
of the Commission through a series of interventions including dialogues, seminars and 
information sessions. Interventions during this past financial year focused on raising public 
awareness on gender equality and gender-related issues. 

These interventions were planned and conducted within the six themes as per the strategic 
plan 2008/13 and the  national programme of action for the financial year 2010/11.

3.5 Review of Research and Policy Service Delivery

The Research Department conducts research and makes recommendations to Parliament 
and other authorities as detailed in the Commission on Gender Equality Act 39 of 1996. The 
Research Department informs and supports the objectives of the Commission, notably with 
regard to monitoring of all organs of society to ensure that gender equality is respected, 
protected, developed and attained; assesses legislation from a gender perspective; monitors 
South Africa’s progress towards the attainment of gender equality and compliance with 
international norms, liaising and interacting with institutions, bodies or authorities, as well as 
with civil society..

3.6 Human Resource Management

This department focuses on recruitment, management of and provision of direction to 
the employees of the Commission.  The unit manages issues related to employees such 
as compensation, recruitment and selection, performance management, organisational 
development, safety, employee wellness, benefits, communication, administration and 
training.

3.7 Information Technology

This department responds to the need of the Commission to manage its Information 
Technolgy processes and provide solutions to enable members of the staff to perform their 
duties. The department procures equipment and services, sets up information management 
systems in order to increase operational efficiency, and assists the Commission to comply 
with the Promotion of Access to Information Act. 

3.8 Monitoring and Evaluation

Monitoring and evaluation is conducted in terms of the African Gender and Development 
Index, which incorporates qualitative monitoring against indices of the gender-related 
development index and the gender-empowerment measure. This important aspect of 
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the Commission’s designated work enables it to collect and record information as part of 
ongoing practice.  In 2010/11, this was instrumental in observing progress with the country’s 
compliance on these international instruments.

CEDAW MOCK TRIAL 2010

Picture Caption: The Commission for Gender Equality, the United Nations Fund for 
Development Women (now UN Women) and the Centre for Human Rights, University of 

Pretoria organised a Mock Session on CEDAW on 29 November to 1 December 2010. This 
was a general rehearsal of the process to be held in January 2011, where official South 
African Delegation led by Minister Women, Children, and Person’s with Disabilities will 

present the country report in Geneva.
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4. HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT REPORT - 31 MARCH 2011 
         

4.1 Personal Expenditure  
         
4.1.1 Personnel costs by salary band   
         

Salary band Number of 
employees

Personnel 
expenditure 
cost

Percentage of 
total personnel

Average 
personnel cost 
per employee

Skilled 
(Level 3 - 5 12 1,175,280 4%        97,940 

Highly Skilled 
(6 - 8) 21 3,901,540 13%      185,788 

Highly Skilled 
Supervision 
(9 - 12) 47 18,870,310 63%  401,496

Senior 
Management 
(13 - 15) 2 1,576,752 5%      788,376 

Commissioners 6 4,413,678 15%      735,613 

Total 88
     

29,937,559 100%      340,200 
 
        

4.1.2 Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners’ Allowance and Medical Assistance By Programme 
   
         
The following table provides a summary per programme and salary band of expenditure 
incurred as a result of salaries, overtime, home owners’ allowances and medical 
assistance 
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Programme Salaries Overtime Home 
owners’ 
allowance

Medical
Assistance

Leave 
paid 
out

Total

Commis-
sioners

            
4,390,071 

                   
732 

                        
-        24,882 

                       
-      4,415,685 

CEO
            

1,518,309 
                

7,994 
             
21,057        25,837 

                       
-      1,573,198 

Financial 
Management

            
2,057,035 

             
28,978 

             
13,212        11,016 

            
59,295      2,169,536 

Internal 
audit-/
monitoring 
and 
evaluation

                
266,328 

                
1,535 

                        
- 

                   
- 

            
11,811 

         
279,673 

Human 
resources

            
1,049,877 

                   
720 

             
13,212        11,886 

              
1,916      1,077,611 

Public 
education 
and training

            
3,169,743 

                         
- 

             
49,545        62,748 

            
13,533      3,295,569 

Legal services
            

4,026,684 
                         

- 
             
39,636        61,605 

              
4,621      4,132,546 

Research 
and policy 
programme

            
3,502,961 

                         
- 

             
26,424        87,373 

                       
-      3,616,758 

Parliamentary 
liaison and 
legislation

                
493,783 

                         
- 

                        
- 

                   
- 

                       
- 

         
493,783 

Information 
and 
communi-
cation

            
1,655,815 

                
3,153 

             
13,212        24,289 

              
7,135      1,703,604 

Administration
            

6,971,477 
                

8,087 
             
59,708      125,573 

            
14,751      7,179,596 

Total
     
29,102,083   

             
51,198 

          
236,007 

     
435,209 

          
113,062 29,937,559 
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4.3 Performance-Related Rewards    
         
4.4 Foreign Workers   
         
Foreign workers within the CGE in 2010 / 2011: 4.    
   
4.5.1  Leave Utilisation  

As part of the commission's management process, the organisation monitored the 
utilisation of sick and annual leave. The following tables provide a record of sick and 
annual leave for the period under review 
 
         

Salary 
band

Number of 
employees

Total days 
taken

% days with 
medical 
certification

Number of 
employees 
using sick 
leave

Ave-rage 
cost per 
employee 
per day

Average 
days per 
employee

Skilled 
(Level       
3 - 5 ) 12 40 100% 5

            
376.63 3.33

Highly 
Skilled 
(6 - 8) 21 108 100% 15

            
714.46 5.14

Highly 
Skilled 
Supervision 
(9 - 12) 47 89 100% 10

        
1,543.92 1.89

Senior 
Manage-
ment 
(13 - 15) 2 0 100% 0

        
3,031.75 0.00

Commis-
sioners 6 0 100% 0

        
2,828.85 0.00

Total 88 237 100% 30
        

1,308.26 
                

2.69 
         



28

ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011
 Commission for Gender Equality  

2010 - 2011 2010 - 2011

4.5.2  Annual Leave      
         

Salary band Number of 
employees 
who have 
taken leave

Total 
days 
taken

Ave-
rage per 
employee

Skilled (Level 
3 - 5 ) 12 215 17.92

Highly Skilled 
(6 - 8) 21 430 20.48

Highly Skilled 
Supervision (9 
- 12) 47 956.5 20.35

Senior 
Manage-
ment ( 13 
- 15) 2 31 15.50

Commis-
sioners 6 113 18.83

Total 88 1745.5 19.84
         
         
4.5.3  Leave Payouts      
         
The following table summarises payments made to employees in lieu of leave taken:  
 
         

Reason Number of 
employees 
paid out

Total 
amount 
paid out

Average 
per 
employee

Termination 
of service 7

           
113,062 

             
16,152 

         
         
4.6  Employment Changes    
         
This section provides information on changes in employment over the financial year. 
Turnover rates are a component of the employment profile of any organisation.  
         
The following tables provides a summary of such turnover rates by salary band (Table 
4.6.1) and by critical occupations (Table 4.6.2) for the Commission:  
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4.6.1

Salary band Number of 
employees 
per band 
as at 1 April 
2010

Appoint-
ments and 
transfers 
within the 
Commission

Terminations 
and transfers 
out of the 
Commission

Skilled 
(Level 3 - 5 ) 12   

Highly Skilled 
(6 - 8) 22  1

Highly Skilled  (9 
- 12) 48 7 9

Senior 
Management  
(13 - 15) 3   

Commis-sioners 9 0 3

Total 94 7 13
         
         
Please note that under senior management band A, which is level 13 (head of department 
- HOD), we have four staff members acting as HODs. These appointees are captured at 
their correct level at level 9 – 12.
         
4.6.2  Annual Turnover Rates by Critical Occupation   
         

Occupation Number of 
employees 
per occupa-
tion as at 1 
April 2010

Appointments 
and transfers to 
the respective 
depart-ment

Terminations 
and trans-
fers out of 
the Com-
mission

Turn
over rate

Legal service 13 2 appointments
2 
terminations 2

Public 
education 
and 
information 10

1 transfer into the 
department 1 termination 1

Research 11 0 1 1

Total 34 3 4 4
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4.6.3 Reasons cited for staff leaving the Commission  
         

Termination 
type

Number % Total

Death 0 0%

Resignation 12 92%

Expiry of 
contract 0 0%

Dismissal - 
operational 
changes 1 8%

Dismissal - 
misconduct 0 0%

Dismissal – 
inefficiency 0 0%

Discharge 
due to illness 0 0%

Retirement 0 0%

Transfers to 
other public 
service 
departments 0 0%

Other 0 0%

Total 13 100%
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4.7 Employment Equity
     
4.7.1 Total number of employees(including employees with disabilities) in each of the 
following occupational categories as 31 March 2011 

         

Occupational 
categories

Male Female

TOTALAfrican Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Legislators, 
senior officials 
and managers 3    5 3  1 12

Professionals 14 1   5  3 1 24

Technicians 
and associate 
professionals 11    8    19

Clerks 3    16 2   21

Service and 
sales workers 2    10    12

Plant workers 
and machine 
operators and 
assemblers         0

Elementary 
occupations         0

Employees with 
disabilities         0

Total 33 1 0 0 44 5 3 2 88
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4.8  Employment and vacancies by Programme as at 31 March 2011   
         

Programme Number of 
vacancies

Number 
of posts

Number of 
posts filled

Vacancy 
rate

Number of 
posts filled in 
addition to the 
establishment

Commissioners 6 12 6 50% 0

Human 
resources 1 4 3 25% 0

IT / C 0 2 2 0% 0

Legal - 
National 2 5 3 40% 0

Research - 
National 1 5 4 20% 0

Education 0 
National 1 2 1 50% 0

Provincial 
Coordinators 2 9 7 22% 0

Provinces - 
Legal 1 9 8 11% 0

Provinces  
Research 2 9 7 22% 0

Provinces  
Education 0 9 9 0% 0

Provinces  
Administrators 0 9 9 0% 0

Provinces- 
Office Assistant 1 9 8 11% 0

Finance 0 7 7 0% 0

Parliament 0 1 1 0% 0

PA/Admin 
National 1 9 8 11% 0

Driver - 
National 0 1 1 0% 0

Office assistant 
- National 0 1 1 0% 0

CEO's office 0 3 3 0% 0

Total 18 106 88 17% 0
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4.9 Recruitment 

Occupational 
Bands

Male Female

TOTALAfrican Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Top manage-
ment     1    1

Senior 
Management         0

Professionally 
qualified 2    1   1 4

Skilled, 
technical and 
academically 
qualified workers     1    1

Semi-skilled and 
dis-cretionally 
decision-making 1        1

Unskilled 
and defined 
decision-making         0

Employees with 
disabilities         0

Total 3 0 0 0 3 0 0 1 7

        

4.10  Promotions      
         
No promotions have been effected during the period under review 

         
4.11 Terminations  

Occupational 
Bands

Male Female

TOTALAfrican Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Top manage-
ment      1   1

Senior 
Management 1 1   3 1   6

Professionally 
qualified 3        3

Skilled, 
technical and 
academically 
qualified workers     2    2

Semi-skilled and 
dis-cretionally 
decision-making 1        1
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Occupational 
Bands

Male Female

TOTALAfrican Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Unskilled 
and defined 
decision-making         0

Employees with 
disabilities         0

Total 5 1 0 0 5 2 0 0 13

4.12 Disciplinary Matters  
         
4.12.1 Disciplinary Action Taken      
         

Occupational 
Bands

Male Female

TOTALAfrican Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Professionals     1    1

         
4.13 Skills Development   
         

Occupational 
Bands

Male Female

TOTALAfrican Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Legislators, senior 
officials and 
management         0

Professionals 1        1

Technical and 
associate 
professionals     2    2

Clerks 3    18 2   23

Service and 
sales workers 1    9    10

Skilled 
agriculture and 
fishery workers         0

Craft workers 
and related 
trades workers         0

Plant workers, 
machine 
operators and 
assemblers         0

Elementary 
occupations         0

Employees with 
disabilities         0

Total 5 0 0 0 29 2 0 0 36
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5.  Programme Performance

5.1    Programme: Office of the Commissioners

Overview

Commissioners are appointed nationally, but deployed to provinces to provide strategic 
leadership and to raise the profile of the Commission. The Commissioners undertook various 
activities during the financial year 2010/11 to ensure that the mandate of the commission 
was realised through conducting workshops, chairing meetings, participating in roundtables 
and/or seminars, developing concept and position papers and making gender-related 
presentations at strategic levels in both the public and private sectors.

Purpose

The primary purpose of the Commissioners is to oversee that the mandate of the Commission 
is achieved. In support of this, the Commissioners are also responsible for providing strategic 
leadership to ensure that programmes adopted within the Commission are aligned and 
fulfilled according to the said mandate.

Primary objectives 
• To ensure that the Commission fulfils its constitutional mandate;

• To preserve institutional autonomy and independence;

• To ensure good corporate governance by executing their fiduciary responsibility;

• To provide strategic leadership by ensuring that the Commission’s organisational 
policies and practices are consistent with its mandate;

• To strengthen institutional systems by serving in statutory committees and other 
committees as allocated by plenary and

• To raise the profile of the Commission by engaging stakeholders within the 
Commission’s development programmes.

5.1.1 Service Delivery 

Objective Activity Service delivery 
indicators

Performance

Ensuring good 
governance

Participation in 
plenary meetings

Four plenary 
meetings per year

Plenary meetings 
were held. 

Establish and co-
ordinate finance 
committee

Compliance with 
the Public Finance 
Management 
Act and Treasury 
Regulations

Finance committee 
established, lead 
commissioner 
identified: 
Commissioner 
Yvette Abrahams. A 
total of 3 meetings 
were held.
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Objective Activity Service delivery 
indicators

Performance

Establish and co-
ordinate good 
governance 
committee

Committee 
established, A 
lead commissioner 
identified. One 
meeting per quarter

Lead commissioner 
identified: Yvette 
Abrahams. 
Meetings are held 
bi-monthly. 

Allocated 
commissioners 
to  serve on audit 
committee

Commissioners 
identified

Commissioners 
Hicks and 
Loyilane have 
been allocated 
to serve on audit 
committee. 

Participate in the 
audit committee 
meetings and  
provide guidance

Meetings attended Participated in 
three meetings 
respectively

Providing strategic 
leadership

Establish and co-
ordinate thematic 
committees as per 
the strategic plan 
2008/13

Commissioners 
allocated to 
committees

Committees have 
been established

Identify lead 
commissioners,               
produce and 
distribute minutes 

Lead commissioners 
identified,                 
minutes of meeting 
kept

Lead commissioners 
have been 
identified as follows:

Gender and 
Poverty: 
Commissioner 
Yvette Abrahams

Gender, 
Democracy and 
Good Governance: 
Commissioner 
Janine Hicks

Gender- based 
Violence : 
Commissioner 
Mfanozelwe Shozi

Gender, Culture, 
Religion and 
Traditional 
Practices: 
Commissioner 
Rosieda 
Shabodien/Ndileka 
Loyilane
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Objective Activity Service delivery 
indicators

Performance

Gender and 
HIV and AIDS: 
Commissioner 
Teboho Maitse

National Gender 
Machinery: 
Commissioner 
Boogie Khutsoane/
Kenosi Meruti

Initiate/establish 
and co-ordinate 
strategic plan 
committee

Hold one session per 
year

Two strategic 
planning meetings 
were planned and 
coordinated. 

Initiate/co-ordinate 
strategic planning 
session programme

Minutes of meetings Strategic planning 
meetings have 
been coordinated                
Minutes have been 
produced and are 
available for the 
meetings held. 

Develop concept 
notes/documents 
to give strategic 
direction on 
programme 
of action 
implementation

Concept notes 
giving strategic 
direction to be 
developed per 
thematic area

Concept note 
on gender and 
the elections 
developed to 
provide direction 
to the gender and 
local government 
elections project 
that was embarked 
upon
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Objective Activity Service delivery 
indicators

Performance

Concept note on 
gender and the 
2010 FIFA World 
Cup South Africa™ 
was developed to 
provide direction 
to the build-up of 
interventions in 
view of this event. 
Specific focus was 
placed on human 
trafficking and  sex 
work.  
Concept note 
on gender and 
energy developed, 
concept paper 
on employment 
equity (EE) hearings 
developed

Compliance 
with policies and 
practices

Assess and  review 
current policies and 
practices

Policies reviewed, 
assessed and 
adopted

A risk assessment 
policy was 
developed and 
adopted.

Review legislation A fraud-prevention 
strategy was 
developed and 
adopted.

A whistle-blowing 
policy was 
developed and 
adopted. 

Legal opinions 
developed as 
guidelines to 
assure adherence 
and compliance 
with policies and 
practices as set out 
by the commission

Strengthening 
institutional systems

Liaison meetings 
with other chapter 9 
institutions  namely 
the South African 
Human Rights 
Commission

Partnerships 
developed

Attended a 
meeting at the 
Office of Institutions 
that Support 
Democracy OISD in 
September 2010
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Objective Activity Service delivery 
indicators

Performance

(SAHRC), the 
office of the public 
protector(OPP), 
the IEC and the 
Commission for 
Cultural and 
Linguistic Rights 
and the portfolio 
committee  and 
select committee 
for the Ministry for 
Women, Children 
and People with 
Disabilities

Attended a 
meeting with the 
select Committee 
on women, 
children, and 
Persons with 
Disabilities

Meetings 
coordinated and 
attended

Held two meetings 
with the deputy 
chairperson of 
SAHRC to discuss 
working relations

Held two meetings 
in May 2010 with 
the Portfolio 
Committee for 
Women, Children 
and People with 
Disabilities to 
discuss the AR 
of 2007/08 and 
2008/09 

Briefed the Select 
Committee on 
Women, Children 
and Persons with 
Disabilities on the 
strategic focus of 
the Eastern Cape 
and    KwaZulu-
Natal (KZN)

Held a meeting 
with the Select 
Committee on 
Women, Children 
and Persons with 
Disabilities in 
November 2010 to 
adopt the Annual 
Report
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Objective Activity Service delivery 
indicators

Performance

Presented the 
turnaround 
strategy to the 
joint meeting of 
the  Committee of 
Portfolio and Select 
Commitees for 
Women, Children 
and People with 
Disabilities in 
October 2010

Held a meeting 
with IEC to discuss 
and secure a 
partnership on 
local government 
elections in 
February 2011

Held a meeting 
with the provincial 
SAHRC and the 
OPP to discuss 
working relations

Participated in 
the South African 
Local Government 
Association 
(SALGA) event 
in July 2010 and 
shared information 
on gender-related 
issues

Briefed the KZN 
legislature on 
gender equality

Liaise with 
government 
departments on 
gender-related 
issues

Meetings 
coordinated and 
held

Held a meeting 
with the Ministry for 
Women, Children 
and People 
with Disabilities 
to discuss CGE 
programmes and 
the turnaround 
strategy 
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Objective Activity Service delivery 
indicators

Performance

Advise institutions 
on gender equality 
and gender 
mainstreaming

Gender 
mainstreaming 
sessions held

 

Partner with 
organisations 
that have similar 
interest in gender 
equality such as 
NGOS, Office on the 
Status of Women, 
Western Cape, 
Women’s Network 
on Violence against 
Women

Partnerships 
coordinated and 
developed 

Partnered with 
Amathole district 
municipality on 
issues of human 
trafficking   

Partnered with the 
NPA on human 
trafficking and the 
2010 FIFA World 
Cup

Liaised with the 
Northern Cape 
legislature to 
discuss partnership 
on gender-related 
issues

Held meetings with 
the UKZN to discuss 
issues of gender-
based violence in 
tertiary institutions 

Partnered 
the National 
Development 
Institute on the 
gender and local 
government 
elections project

Raising the profile of 
the commission

Public speaking, 
representing  the 
commission on 
different platforms  
and presenting 
papers on gender 
issues

Profile of the 
commission has 
been raised in 
public arena during 
this financial year

Partnered with 
the KZN diaconal 
services on human 
trafficking and sex 
work awareness 
campaign

Partnered with the 
Mercury, Gagasi 
99.5fm on hosting 
a dialogue on 
the domestic 
partnership bill
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Objective Activity Service delivery 
indicators

Performance

Partnered with 
Sonke Gender 
Justice on 
South Africa’s 
compliance 
with the Beijing 
Declaration and 
Platform for Action

Partnered with 
UNIFEM to host a 
mock session on 
CEDAW reporting

Partnered with 
Ilitha Labantu on 
human trafficking 
campaign held in 
Cape Town

Partnered with 
the Heinrich Boll 
Foundation on a 
dialogue on human 
rights and Sexual 
orientation and 
identities 

Presented briefing 
to UKZN faculty of 
education on the 
status of gender 
equality in South 
Africa

Presented a 
summary of the 
CGE  MDGs report 
to the Progressive 
Women’s 
Movement

Gave a 
presentation on 
(BFA) and The 
convention on 
the elimination 
of all forms of 
discrimination 
against women 
(CEDAW) at 
COSATU
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Objective Activity Service delivery 
indicators

Performance

Wrote an article 
on gender-based 
violence, which 
was published in 
the “Diamond” 
newspaper in 
Kimberley 

Participated in 
a discussion of 
initiation schools 
at the Provincial 
House of Traditional 
Affairs

Presented the 
mandate and the 
strategic plan of 
the Commission at 
the Northern Cape 
legislature

Presented briefing 
on women and 
governance at the 
National Institute of 
Higher Learning in 
Kimberley

Held a meeting 
with the ANC 
to discuss 50/50 
representation and 
the Commission’s 
election project

Sixteen opinion 
pieces were 
published in various 
newspapers on 
various gender-
related topics.

Conduct media 
interviews

Interviews were 
conducted through 
print, radio and 
electronic media

511 Radio/TV 
interviews were 
conducted.

18 right to replies

29 media 
statements
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5.2 Programme: Office of the CEO

5.2.1 Internal audit

Overview

The responsibility of the Internal Audit function is to assist Management and the Audit 
Committee to discharge their responsibilities effectively. The scope of Internal Audit’s 
work is to review the adequacy and efficiency of the Commission’s control processes, to 
report findings and to make recommendations to improve weaknesses. Documents that 
govern the operations of Internal Audit have been developed and approved by the Audit 
Committee, together with the Interim Audit plan.

The internal audit function was not operational for the period May to October 2010 following 
the resignation of Mr Patrick Mathobo (internal auditor) in April 2010. He was succeeded by 
Mr Cedric Seaba, whose appointment became effective on 1 November 2010. An Interim 
plan subsequently had to be put in place for the remainder of the financial year.
 
Effectiveness of internal control 

The system of internal control was not entirely effective for the year under review. During 
the year under review several deficiencies in the system of internal control were reported 
by Internal Audit and the Auditor General of South Africa. Some of the matters reported 
previously have been fully and satisfactorily addressed. 

Internal Audit 

The projects identified within the Interim Audit Plan were completed and finalised. No projects 
were rolled over to the next financial year. Reports have been issued to management to 
commence correcting the risks that have been identified. The internal auditor has advised 
the Audit Committee and top management about the audit findings.

5.2.2 Office of the Chief Operations Officer

The position of Chief Operations Officer is currently vacant. As an interim measure, the 
position of Acting National Coordinator of Provinces (ANCP) was instituted in 2008 and has 
been operating since.  The function of this position is to ensure the efficiency of Commission’s 
operations at provincial level and also to fulfil commitments to internal and external 
stakeholders. 

The ANCP has strived to facilitate appropriate linkages and information flow between 
management and the provinces, to ensure that information required by the Management 
Committee (MANCO) is obtained, and to update provinces by providing relevant 
information when required, specifically information required for guidance or decision-
making by MANCO and the CEO.

5.2.3    Information Technology

The CGE procured and rolled out the new antivirus program to all servers and workstations. 
The project was  successful. All sites were visited and workstations were loaded with the CGE-
licensed anti-virus program.. A total number of 92 desktops and notebooks were updated, 
including 14 servers.
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The Commission’s website recorded an average of 6 111 new visitors per month from 97 
countries worldwide, with 11 244 page views, 60.43% new visits and 4 083.00 referrals from 
websites such as www. info.gov.za, google and bing (search engines). Each visitor spent an 
average of 00:01:04 minutes on the Commission’s website. National visits amounted to 5 272, 
followed by the United Kingdom at 250.  Twenty percent of the website visitors contacted 
the Commission personally because they were interested in visiting South Africa and forging 
long-term relationships with the Commission and other human rights bodies.

The following is a graphic representation of the performance of the website for the period 
2010/2011

The following graph represents percentages of referring sites, direct sites and search engine 
usage in 2010/11
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CORE SERVICE DELIVERY

5.3 Programme: Legal

Highlights 

CEDAW Project

After the ratification of CEDAW in 1995, South Africa submitted its first country report in 1998, 
covering the period 1994 to 1998. In 2001 and 2005 the South African government failed to 
submit its  report to the CEDAW Committee. South Africa subsequently submitted a report 
in 2009, covering the period 1998 to 2008. As per one of the functions outlined in the CGE 
Act, the Commission embarked on a process of assessing the country report as well as the 
concluding remarks by the CEDAW Committee on previous reports . 

The report focused on critical areas not highlighted or expanded upon in the South African 
country report by systematically covering all the articles to identify the outstanding issues in 
accordance with the said reporting guidelines. The report was tabled, with Parliament and 
the CEDAW Committee highlighting the Commission’s findings.

Beijing Project

South Africa ratified the Beijing Declaration and Platform for Action in 1995. One of the 
Commission’s core function is to monitor compliance with international conventions, 
covenants and charters acceded to or ratified by the South African government. Although 
this convention has allowed for the development of progressive legislation, the Commission 
felt it was imperative to embark on a process to assess the implementation of BFA thus far.  
A national and provincial  reports were developed and tabled in parliament. The provincial 
reports were shared with the Commission’s stakeholders. 

Millennium Development Goals Project 

In 2010, the UN commemorated the commitments made to the Millennium Development 
Goals (MDGS) .. The UN General Assembly held a summit in September 2010 to take stock 
of the commitments made by member states, of which South Africa is one. A report was 
developed assessing the implementation of the MDGs and whether South Africa would 
meet the commitments it has made. The findings of the report was tabled in Parliament and 
shared with stakeholders in a dailogue that was held in September 2010. 

Complaints Management

The department works within specific timeframes for the management of complaints 
received. The department received a total 255 complaints during the 2010/11 financial 
year. The table below indicates the complaints that the CGE received nationally during the 
2010/11 financial year.
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New files opened during 2010/2011

Nature of complaint GP LP WC MP NW FS KZN EC NC HO Total

Gender

discrimination

0 2 6 0 1 3 8 8 5 7 36

Domestic violence 0 2 3 5 0 1 1 0 4 2 18

Maintenance 2 1 0 5 0 5 2 3 10 1 29

Divorce 0 2 2 3 1 4 3 3 12 0 30

Custody and

access

0 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 3 1 9

Estate 1 3 0 10 0 8 0 1 3 2 28

Gender-based

violence

0 2 0 0 0 0 2 2 0 0 6

Sexual harassment 0 0 1 0 1 1 2 1 1 1 8

Labour 0 0 3 2 1 3 0 4 5 5 23

Unlawful eviction 0 0 2 2 0 0 1 0 0 1 6

Claim for restitution 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Tradition/culture 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 4

Others 0 1 5 3 2 3 10 2 18 13 57

Total 3 18 24 31 6 28 29 21 61 34 255

The following table represents the files that were brought forward, opened and closed 
during the 2010/11financial year. The CGE handled 468 complaints during 2010/11. Of 468 
files handled, 213 were brought forward from 2009/10 and 255 were new files. A total of 282 
files were closed and 186 files are still pending.

Province Files brought 
forward 

Opened files Closed files this 
financial 
year

Files pending 

Gauteng 35 37 45 27

Limpopo 15 18 18 15

Western Cape 13 24 25 12

Mpumalanga 12 31 16 27

North West 12 6 7 11

Free State 41 28 49 20

KwaZulu-Natal 26 29 17 38

Eastern Cape 22 21 34 9

Northern Cape 37 61 71 27

Total 215 255 282 188
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Files brought forward  :  213
Total number of new files opened :  255
Total number of files closed  :  282
Total number of files pending : 188

Litigation

The CGE is currently litigating on a matter in the Mpumalanga province regarding a dispute 
over chieftainship. This matter will be carried over to the new financial year. 

Court Monitoring

During the year under review, 19 cases were monitored countrywide. The purpose of 
monitoring was to ascertain the functionality of the courts.

Public Hearings

During the year under review, two Employment Hearings were held. A total of 20 companies 
across sectors (private and government) were invited to these hearings. At the hearings 
companies were engaged on their respective employment equity figures and compliance 
with the Employment Equity Act. A number of key recommendations  emerged from the 
hearings, namely:

• Greater accountability for employment equity

• A strong support for drafting of a Gender Equality Bill.

• Better monitoring of the implementation and compliance of Employment Equity.

• Submission of targets, plans and data disaggregated in terms of race, gender and 
disability by companies to Department of Labour.

• An accelerated director-general review process is necessary.

• Greater consequences for failing to comply with legislation in the form of penalties, a 
naming and shaming process and fines, possibly channeled into skills development. 

• The amendment of the Broad Based Black Empowerment Act (BBB EA) and Employment 
Equity Act (EEA) should be accompanied by a strong recommendation to link 
gender and people with disabilities to Employment Equity (EE) and black economic 
empowerment compliance.

5.4 Programme: Public Education and Information

Highlights

Human trafficking “red card campaign”

The Commission partnered with the National Prosecuting Authority Xand the 2010 FIFA World 
Cup Local Organising Committee (LOC) on a “red card campaign”. This campaign, which 
was hosted in Nelspruit, Mpumalanga, was based on basic soccer rules that could easily be 
explained to diverse audiences.  The campaign was twofold, namely a media campaign 
at the Bombela stadium and thereafter a pamphlet knock-and-drop exercise and short 
engagements in surrounding communities. Presentations were made by representatives of 
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the LOC, NPA and CGE.
 
CEDAW mock session/trial

The CGE in partnership with UNIFEM and the Centre for Human Rights, Pretoria University 
hosted a CEDAW mock session on 29 and 30 November and 1 December 2010. The purpose 
of the mock session was to engage government through dialogue with a United Nations 
representative from New York, two CEDAW committee members (international) and one 
human rights expert playing the role of CEDAW committee members. The purpose of the 
mock session was firstly to assist the government delegation to prepare for the CEDAW review 
and secondly to facilitate greater understanding of the obligations of the government in  
terms of the CEDAW convention, reporting guidelines, working ways and methods of the 
CEDAW committee, on the basis of which review will be conducted. 

Dialogues to Launch the Beijing Declaration and Platform for Action Report

South Africa submitted its first BFA report in 2000 and the second report in 2005. The third 
report was due in 2010.  A study was  carried out to review and appraise progress on the 
implementation of the Beijing Declaration and Beijing Platform for Action (BPA) adopted at 
the fourth world conference on women (Beijing), as well as the outcomes of the 23rd special 
session of the general assembly (2000).  A national report and seven provincial reports were 
produced.

Dialogues to launch the BFA reports were held. This was done in  partnership with Sonke 
Gender Justice in Gauteng, Eastern Cape and KZN. Both organisations shared the 
recommendations in their reports. In the North West, Mpumalanga and Northern Cape, the 
Commission hosted dialogues to launch its national and provincial BFA reports respectively.
.
Dialogue to launch Millennium Development Goals report

As part of  its mandate the CGE has to monitor the implementation of international and 
regional covenants and charters signed, acceded to and ratified by the South African 
government. The MDGs arising from the Millennium Declaration is one such instrument. 
The Commission hosted a dialogue in September 2010 to discuss the findings and 
recommendations of its report. 

Dialogues on the implementation of the recommendations on the UN Special Rapporteur 
Report on Violence Against Women

The South African governemnt invited the UN Special Rapporteur on Violence Against 
Women to assess and compile a report on the causes and consequences of rape in South 
Africa in view of its prevalence in comparison with other countries.  More than a decade 
had passed and no assessment or follow-up was conducted. This necessitated a study by 
the Commission. A initial report was produced and shared across the nine provinces through 
dialogues which were hosted during the 16 days of Activism programme of the Commission.

Gender and energy dialogues

Energy poverty is rife in South Africa. In 2008, official figures were released which showed 
that 2,5 million households were not connected to electricity, most of these in rural areas; 
70% of rural households still rely to some extent on wood fuel and paraffin and although 
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some of them have electricity (STATSSA, 2008). The links between gender and poverty have 
been explored  before and many papers have been delivered on this particular issue, yet 
few have tackled an element of poverty that can occupy a quarter of the rural woman’s 
time, affects her health and is key to developing her gender-strategic interests, namely 
energy.

Bearing in mind that women are affected differently by energy policies and programmes 
and that women make up the majority of single-headed households, the recent electricity 
tariff increase has laid a heavier burden on women and female-headed household, hence 
further feminising poverty. This necessitated the gender and energy dialogues which 
allowed for engagement with stakeholders. Eight Gender and Enegry dailogues were 
held. Stakeholders who participated were namely, NERSA, Eskom, district municipalities, 
the Department of Minerals and Energy, Energy and Climate Forum, Safe Energy, Coalition 
against Nuclear Energy, Community-Based Organisations (CBOs) and Non-Governmental 
Organisations( NGOs).

5.5 Programme: Policy and Research

Highlights

Victims Charter 

The Service Charter for Victims of Crime in South Africa (the “Victims Charter”) is an 
important instrument for promoting justice for all. The Victims Charter is compliant with the 
spirit of the South African Constitution, Act 108 of 1996, and the United Nations Declaration 
of Basic Principles of Justice for Victims of Crime and Abuse of Power, 1985 (GA/RES/40/34). 
It is consonant with the provisions of Section 234 of the Constitution. The Victims Charter 
was developed to be in line with the National Crime Prevention Strategy’s victim-centered 
vision for the criminal justice system. The ultimate goal is victim empowerment through 
meeting victims’ needs, be they material or emotional. The Commission for Gender Equality 
(CGE) participated in the Inter-Departmental Task-team that culminated in the formulation 
of the Victims Charter. The CGE, through its constitutional mandate, committed itself to 
conduct monitoring and evaluation of the implementation of the Victims Charter from a 
gender perspective. The six implementing departments of the Victims Charter are: Justice, 
South African Police Services (SAPS); Social Development, National Prosecuting Authority; 
Correctional Services and Health. The two current departments under review are Social 
Development and National Prosecuting Authority; with Justice and SAPS having been 
reviewed in the 2009/10 Financial year.

A report on the findings of this study has been completed. The study identified  two key 
department namely, the Department of Social Development and the National Prosecuting 
Authority. The study focused on shelters for victims of crime, that is the Thuthuzela Care 
Centres. Data from both departments revealed that since the implementation of the 
Victims Charter in 2008, the lead departments and stakeholders have all understood their 
roles in the programme. It also found that sufficient funding for the implementation of the 
programme is lacking. The Department of Social Development has additional challenges 
because it deals with shelters from divergent socio-economic backgrounds and it does 
not have a clear funding model on how to support them. Those that are located in poor 
communities and provinces are still under-resourced financially, physically and in human 
capital. The Thuthuzela Centres are well-resourced and have sufficient capacity compared 
to the Department of Social Development.  
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Gender Barometer

In 2008 the CGE, through its Democracy and Good Governance (D&GG) thematic area, 
identified the need to develop an electronic web-based gender barometer tool in order 
to continually monitor and evaluate the extent to which gender equality is promoted 
in all organs of society, i.e. in all three tiers of government, the private sector and non-
governmental organisations.  The gender barometer is an important tool that has been 
designed to enable the CGE to report annually to Parliament on the status of gender 
equality in relation to the commitments made by the country on international and regional 
instruments, as well as domestic laws. This tool can therefore be defined as a yardstick for 
regular monitoring of gender transformation in South Africa.

In 2009/10 the Commission met with 15 government departments at national level and guided 
them on how to administer the web-based gender barometer tool. Seven departments 
have responded positively and a report will be produced in 2011/2012.

A key finding of the report is that there seems to be a trend of varying human resource 
capacity to fulfil the task of gender mainstreaming, creating an enabling environment for 
the attainment of gender equality and supporting gender equality by collecting gender 
disaggregated data. 

Water study

The first phase of this project, comprising a desktop analysis, has been completed and a 
report has been produced. The second phase of the study, involves fieldwork. This will be 
conducted in 2011/12 in order to obtain the views of the beneficiaries of the water sector, 
especially the water boards, water users and local municipalities.  A comprehensive report 
will subsequently be produced .

Popularisation of land study report

All provincial offices have taken the  land study report to the key stakeholders of the project, 
mainly government departments. The findings and recommendations of the report have 
been shared, 

Preparation for 2011 local government elections

In preparation for monitoring the 2011 Local Government Elections, integrated development 
plans (IDPs) and political party manifestos were analysed from a gender perspective and 
a report was produced, which was subsequently used as a basis for engaging political 
parties prior to the elections.:A key issue emerging from the analysis is that municipalities fail 
to do gender –responsive  planning in all processes. The IDPs made reference to key policy 
documents such as the National and Local Gender Policy Frameworks but did not effect 
these frameworks. It was found that Political parties find difficulty in planning from a gender 
perspective. 
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5.6  Core Service Delivery Programme: Pre-Determined Objectives 

The CGE, in partnership with various stakeholders, monitors the standards of living and 
quality of life of South Africans, including female-headed households, with the main aim of 
promoting job creation, job security and economic opportunities.

Theme 1: Gender equality and poverty
Goal: Eradication of poverty in South Africa

Objective One

To develop conceptual framework in collaboration with strategic partners, for its gender 
and poverty focus, by defining possible entries and monitoring points of government poverty 
reduction policies, strategies and programmes; to assess the gendered impact of poverty 
on the quality of life of women including female-headed households, bearing in mind the 
effects of various poverty programmes on global climate change and biodiversity.  

Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

1.1 Monitor 
the devel-
opment 
and imple-
mentation 
of pilot 
gender 
equality 
and pov-
erty pro-
grammes 
aimed at 
improving 
access to 
key
focus 
points 
(land, 
water, 
sanitation). 
In two 
provinces, 
monitor-
ing the 
achieve-
ments of 
such pro-
jects and 
encourag-
ing replica-
tion of suc-
cessful

PEI

Partnership 
established

April 2010- 
February 
2010
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Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

aspects 
in other 
provinces. 
Convene 
a minimum 
of four 
meetings 
to consoli-
date the 
partner-
ship.
Develop 
TORs and 
memoran-
da of un-
derstand-
ing (MOUs)

Meetings 
held

Actual :  28 
meetings out 
of projected 
36 meetings
Nine TORs de-
veloped

TORS and 
MOUS  de-
veloped 
and signed

1.2 Maternity 
benefits 
project: 
Evaluate 
access to 
maternity 
benefits 
for self- 
employed 
women

Legal and PEI

Access to 
maternity 
benefits - 
assess

April 2010 
- February 
2011

Project post-
poned to new 
financial year

Project to 
be under-
taken in 
2011/12 
financial 
year

Develop 
concept 
paper

Sub-mis-
sions Made

Submissions 
made for 
inclusion in 
amended EE 
legislationConvene 

one meet-
ing per 
province
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Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

Set up 
meetings 
with Na-
tional De-
partment 
of Labour                              
and  make 
submissions 
to change
legislation 
on access    
to materni-
ty benefits

1.3 9 Public 
hearings: 
Gender & 
Energy

Legal and PEI Report on 
hearings  
to inform-
ing litiga-
tion

Tuesday, 
1 March  
2011

All 9 projected  
dialogues 
were held

1.4 Assess gov-
ernment’s 
implemen-
tation of 
the MDGS 
focusing 
on water 
and sani-
tation

Research & 
Legal

Critique 
the coun-
try report

April 2010 
to Sep-
tember 
2010

Meetings held 
with govt on 
critiqued re-
port
Present report 
to parliament

Conduct 
campaign 
on popu-
larisng the

Campaign 
conducted
Report pro-
duced

MDGs and 
the land 
study re-
port

1.5 Develop 
partner-
ships to as-
sess Land 
Acts from 
a gender 
perspec-
tive

Legal Identify 
gaps in the 
legislation
Make sub-
missions to 
amend-
ment  leg-
islation

April to 
Nov 2010

Acts assessed
Gaps identi-
fied
Submissions 
made for 
amendments
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Objective Two

To develop a gender-sensitive tool, to conduct objective assessments of government’s 
impact on poverty

Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

1.6 Refine 
gender 
barom-
eter tool. 
Administer 
the imple-
menta
tion of the 
gender 
barometer 
to national 
depart-
ments.  
Public 
hearings: 
gender 
and en-
ergy

Research

Tool re-
fined and 
adminis-
tered

April-Dec 
2010

The tool was 
refined and 
administered

Report is 
produced 
and distri-
bu-ted to 
relevant 
stake-hold-
ers

Report has 
been pro-
duced, covers 
7 national de-
partments

1.7 Assess-
ment  and 
managing 
of poverty- 
related 
complaints Legal

Increase 
number 
of com-
plaints re-
ceived

Ongoing

See statics un-
der legal sec-
tion 

90% of 
com-
plaints re-
ceived are 
resolved

See statistics 
under legal 
section 

1.8 Litigate 
on cases 
related to 
poverty as 
they arise

Legal

Report on 
hearings  
to inform 
litigation

Ongoing

No cases were 
identified for 
litigation
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Theme Two: Gender-based Violence

Goal: The CGE, co-operating with strategic partners, works towards the creation of a 
violence-free society by significantly reducing gender-ased violence

Objective One

To monitor and ensure the enforcement of legislation in seeking to address gender-based 
violence and improve the effectiveness of service delivery.

Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

2.1 Track the 
human 
trafficking 
bill

Legal and PEI

CGE and 
partners  
provide 
written 
feedback 
to par-lia-
ment with 
given time 
frames 
on the 
effective-
ness of the 
implemen-
tation of 
the bill and 
report on 
the find-
ings to Par-
liament

Apr 2010

Submission to 
DOJ has been 
made

Fast-track 
the pass-
ing of the 
bill

Submission on 
adult prostitu-
tion has been 
made

Monitor 
the imple-
mentation 
of the bill

Develop 
partner-
ships that 
will assess 
the imple-
mentation 
of the of 
the bill

“Engendering 
the 2010 FIFA 
World Cup” re-
port produced 
and tabled

CGE to co-
host cam-
paign in 
relation to 
2010: “ hu-
man traf-
ficking- red 
card”

MP and GP 
: co-hosted 
the human 
trafficking 
red-card cam-
paign in part-
nership with 
NPA in May 
2010
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Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

2.2 In partner-
ship with 
identified 
role play-
ers, devel-
op moni-
toring and 
evaluation 
mecha-
nisms for 
tracking 
the effec-
tive imple-
mentation 
of the 
following: 
Sexual Of-
fenses Act, 
the Child 
Care Act, 
Domestic 
Violence 
Act, Film 
And Pub-
lications 
Act, and 
Criminal 
Procedure 
Act

Legal

Monitor-ing 
and eval-
uation tool 
developed

April 2010 
- March 
2011

Evaluation 
tool has not 
been devel-
oped

Report pro-
duced

No report pro-
duced

2.3 Monitor 
365 days 
of activ-
ism pro-
gramme

Research

Monitor-
ing tool 
developed

April - 
Dec 2010

Monitoring 
tool devel-
oped

a) Imple-
mentation 
of Victims 
Charter

Report pro-
duced

Report on Vic-
tims Charter 
produced

b) Monitor 
depart-
ments
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Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

2.4 Develop 
strategic 
partner-
ships/
collabora-
tions to 
create 
awareness 
of gender-
based 
violence 
issues such 
as sex 
work, hu-
man traf-
ficking

PEI

Partner-
ship/Col-
laboration 
developed

April- Dec 
2010

Partnership 
developed

Convene 
a minimum 
of four 
meetings 
to consoli-
date the 
partnership

Meetings 
convened 
and 
minutes 
produced

Of 36 
projected 
meetings only 
32 were held

Develop 
TORs and 
MOUs

TORs  and 
MOUs 
signed

Nine TORs and 
MOUs  were 
signed

Conduct 
two to four 
interven-
tions as 
agreed

Inter-ven-
tions con-
ducted 
and re-
ports pro-
duced

36 interven-
tions were pro-
jected and 46 
took place

2.5 Establish 
reference 
groups/ fo-
rums to dis-
cuss GBV 
issues

PEI- National

Reference 
groups/
forums es-
tablished

April 2010- 
Feb 2011

Reference 
group con-
cept paper 
has been final-
ised

Identify 
emerging 
trends and 
infuse into 
interven-
tions

Trends 
identified  

No reference 
group meet-
ings (section 
six commit-
tees) were 
held in the 
financial year 
under review
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Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

2.6 Create 
increased 
awareness 
of the 
mandate 
of CGE in 
specific 
relation 
to GBV  
through  
comm-
unity radio  
stations

PEI/
Com-muni-
cation

CGE 
mandate 
known 
by com-
munities

April 2010- 
March 
2011

153 interviews 
were 
conducted 
through 
community 
radio stations

2.7 Conduct 
equality 
act 
campaign 
during 
women’s 
month

PEI/ Legal

Campaign 
objectives 
achieved: 
assess-
ment 
report pro-
duced on 
the courts 
visited

Of nine 
campaigns 
projected, Six 
were held.

No clear 
di-rection 
was pro-
vided on 
the imple-
men-tation 
of cam-
paign. 
DOJ post-
poned the 
joint imple-
menta-
tion of the 
project.

Have 
meetings 
with DOJ 
to establish 
list of 
courts and 
during 
August 
monitor 
the actual 
locations 
and 
produce a 
report

Report ta-
bled with 
DOJ and 
parliamen-
tary com-
mittee

Two meetings 
were held with 
DOJ.

2.8 Conduct 
16 days of 
activism 
campaign 
through 
partner-
ing/col-
laboration

PEI

Objectives 
achieved

Nov- Dec 
2010

Concept 
paper was 
developed 
and finalised. 
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Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

Review the 
concerns 
and rec-
ommenda-
tions made 
by the UN 
Special 
Rappor-
teur in 
1996 on 
violence 
against 
women 
in South 
Africa and 
engage 
the current 
UN Special 
Rappor-
teur on 
violence 
against 
women 
and the 
rights of 
women in 
Africa

Report 
produced, 
seminars in 
provinces 
to share 
infor-
mation

Report on the 
UN Special 
Rapporteur’s 
recommenda-
tions has been 
finalised. Dia-
logue with the 
current Spe-
cial Rappor-
teur had to be 
postponed. 
The date to 
discuss the re-
port still needs 
to be con-
firmed.

The date 
to discuss 
the report 
still needs 
to be con-
firmed.

2.9 Assessment 
and man-
agement 
of all GBV-
related 
complaints Legal

Effective 
com-
plaints 
and cases 
finalised or 
referred Ongoing

See legal sta-
tistics

Increased 
number 
of com-
plaints

See legal sta-
tistics
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Theme Three: Gender, democracy and good governance

Goal: In collaboration with civil society and through improved frameworks and systems 
for monitoring, evaluation and reporting, the CGE becomes the national authority on 
compliance to the gender equality legislative and policy framework, gender mainstreaming 
and good practice.

Objective One

Ensure all national, provincial legislation and bylaws have been assessed from a gender 
equality perspective and implementation of legislation for promoting and protecting 
gender equality is tracked and monitored, and that women have made a qualitative input 
in such processes.

Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

3.1 Develop 
and im-
plement 
a system 
to ensure 
that all 
legislation 
passing 
through 
Parlia-
ment and 
provincial 
legislatures 
is scruti-
nised  from 
a gender 
equality 
perspec-
tive and 
complies 
with rel-
evant 
adopted 
interna-
tional, na-
tional, and 
sub-region-
al declara-
tions and 
frame-
works:

Legal (natio-
nal and pro-
vincial)

Legis-lation 
is gender-
sensitive

Ongoing

Submissions 
are made by 
parliamentary 
officer and 
sent to the rel-
evant depart-
ment of Parlia-
ment
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Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

a) Produce 
quality re-
views/sub-
missions in 
good time 
on past/
current/ 
emerging 
legisla-
tion in all 
spheres of 
govern-
ment. Lob-
bying with 
civil society 
partners for 
recommen-
dations to 
be tabled 
at the NA 
or NCOP 
(and pro-
vincial leg-
islatures).

a) Sub-
missions 
made from 
a gender 
equality 
viewpoint 
on all 
bills and 
legislation

Ongoing

10 Submissions 
have been 
made

b)       
Broad 
consulta-
tion with 
relevant 
stakeholder 
groups 
conducted 
to facilitate 
compiling 
of sub-
missions. 
Records 
kept of lob-
bying with 
civil society 
partners for 
recommen-
dations to 
be tabled 
at NA or 
NCOP

b) Con-
sulta-tions 
con-duct-
ed, reports 
produced 
and inputs 
consoli-dat-
ed for par-
liamentary 
officer

Ongoing

Not complet-
ed.
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Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

c)       As-
sess and 
review the 
implemen-
tation of 
CALS report 
on pre-1994 
legislation.  
Identify 
gaps and 
follow-up 
on  
recommen-
dations

c) Review 
report 
produced

February 
2011

Not 
completed.

Objective Two

The CGE develops a strategy to monitor and track compliance to the gender 
equality legislation and policy framework by national, provincial and local govern-
ment.

Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

3.2 Use the 
gender 
barometer 
to assess 
the imple-
mentation 
of gender 
main-
streaming 
and gen-
der budg-
eting in:

Re-search 
(na-tional 
and provin-
cial)

3.2.1. Four 
national 
depart-
ments and 
two provin-
cial depart-
ments

3.2.1 & 2 
Gender 
baro-meter 
report on 
national 
and provin-
cial level 
monitor-ed

Apr - Dec 
2010

A report has 
been pro-
duced.
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Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

3.2.2. 
Launch of 
reports at 
national 
and provin-
cial level

3.2.2 
Launch 
conducted 
at national 
and 
provincial 
level Jun- July 

2010

No provincial 
launches took 
place.

   3.2.3 Sub-
mission to 
Parliament 
on report 
findings 

3.2.3  Sub-
mission to 
Parliament 
done 

Report not 
tabled

Report will 
be tabled 
in the next 
finanial 
year

3.2.4 
Launch of 
the gender 
barometer 
in provinc-
es (sample 
district 
munici-
palities) 

3.2.4 Provin-
cial launch-
es  

No provincial 
launches took 
place.

   3.2.5 Train-
ing of gov-
ernment 
officials on 
the gender 
barometer 
tool at na-
tional and 
provincial 
level.

3.2.5 Train-
ing done

  Not conducted
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Objective Three

CGE uses its full powers to review the policies and practices in business in the private 
sector, tertiary institutions and statutory bodies in order to ensure compliance with 
the gender equality legislative and policy framework.

Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

3.5. Commu-
nication 
strategy 
to ensure 
that CGE 
comments 
on current/
emer-
ging issues 
pertaining 
to gender 
equality

Communi-
cations

Press state-
ments, 
inter-views 
and articles 
published

Ongoing

Strategy circu-
lated in July-
Aug. Has been 
developed. 
The strategy is 
under review 
by the ITC 
committee.

3.6. Follow- up 
intervention 
with nation-
al media 
in terms of 
CGE’s semi-
nar report. 
Stakehold-
ers, MDDA, 
SABC, radio 
and print 
media.

Communi-
cations

 

Ongoing

Follow-up 
meetings with 
MDDA have 
taken place 
and media 
dialogue was 
held in KZN
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Objective Five

The CGE and its strategic and civil society partners hold political parties  and representatives 
accountable to their election manifesto promises and challenge political parties to adopt a 
policy of 50/50 representation of women in politics, including leadership positions, to ensure 
greater representation and effective participation of women.

Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

3.7. Local gov-
ernment 
election 
campaign:

PEI and 
research 
(national)

Report on 
dialogue

November 
2010

Concept has 
been drafted 
and circu-
lated. Letters 
to stakeholders 
have been cir-
culated

 

Review of 
national 
elections 
political 
party mani-
festos to as-
sess imple-
mentation 
jointly with 
the IEC.

Commit-
ments 
made by 
political 
parties to 
gender 
equity are 
monitored 
and 
followed 
up

Meetings with 
the IEC were 
held to estab-
lish a partner-
ship for the dia-
logue hosted 
in April 2011. 
Assessment of 
party manifes-
tos and munici-
pal IDPs have 
been finalised 
and dialogue 
was arranged - 
it took place in 
April 2011.

3.8. Monitoring 
of the local 
elections 
and com-
pilation of 
report : all 
forms of 
media

PEI/re-search 
(natio-nal 
and provin-
cial)

Elections 
Report

Depend-
ing on 
date of 
election

Voting date 
was confirmed. 

Moni-toring 
of elec-
tions will 
take place 
in the next 
finan-cial 
year

Distribu-ted 
to relevant 
stake-
holders and 
political 
parties.
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Theme 4 : Gender, culture, tradition and religion

Objective One

To develop innovate campaigns, in conjunction with civil society partners and  where 
appropriate government, to raise awareness  of how culture, tradition and religious 
interpretations and practices could iinfluence the perpetuation of gender inequalities. This 
will be done by adopting a targeted approach to influence key stakeholders (traditional 
leaders, religious leaders and women with a particular focus on rural impact). 

Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

4.1. Monitor 
legislation 
pertaining 
to culture, 
tradition 
and religion

Legal Sub-mis-
sions and/
or repeals

April 2010- 
Feb 2011

A submission 
has been 
made, relating 
to “ukuthwala”

 

4.2. To advo-
cate and 
contribute 
to policy 
and sub-
missions for 
amend-
ments and/
or repeals: 
Law of 
Succession, 
Muslim per-
sonal law, 
Traditional 
Leadership 
Amend-
ment Act, 
Customary 
Act, and 
witchcraft

Legal Sub-mis-
sions and /
or repeals

April 2010- 
Feb 2011

No repeals 
have been 
made. 

 

4.3 Conduct 
and revise 
desktop re-
search and 
harmful 
traditional 
practices 
to provide 
direction 
to develop 
position on 

Research Research 
report pro-
duced

April- Sep 
2010

Concept 
document 
has been pro-
duced.
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Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

on “uku-
thwala”, 
widow-
hood, 
succession, 
inherit-
ance, vir-
ginity test-
ing, Female 
Genital 
Mutilation 
(FGM), and 
circumci-
sion

4.4. Facilitate 
four meet-
ings with 
national 
and pro-
vincial 
traditional 
leaders 
and NHTL  
to develop 
working re-
lationships 
on gender-
related 
matters, 
towards a 
building-up 
process for 
national 
conference

PEI 1.Four 
meetings 
held

April 2010-
July 2010

Of 36 project-
ed meetings, 
12 were held 
and 17 inter-
ventions were 
conducted of 
23 that were 
projected and 
six TORs were 
signed.

 

2. Work-
shop report 
produced 

3. Working 
relations es-
tablished 
and TORs 
and MOUs 
signed

4. Provin-
cial inputs 
made as 
build-up 
towards 
national 
confe-
rence 

5. Media 
impact

4.5 Host  a 
national 
conference 
on gender, 
culture, tra-
dition and 
religion

PEI 1. Con-
ference 
hosted

Septem-
ber 2010

Not imple-
mented. 

Con-
ference 
has been 
deferred 
to the next 
financial 
year

 2. Con-
feren-ce 
report pro-
duced and 
distribu-ted.
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Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

3. Recom-
menda-
tions of 
report used 
appro-
priately

4.  Media 
impact

4.6 Identify 
cases for 
Litigation 
on any 
gender re-
lated cases 
as per 
thematic 
areas

Legal Finalise 
complaints
Increase 
Number of 
complaints

Ongoing Possible litiga-
tion cases 
identified and 
pursued

4.7 Gender 
Barometer

Research Administer 
the Gender 
barometer: 
Using the 
barometer 
assess the 
implemen-
tation of 
gender 
main-
streaming 
and gen-
der budg-
eting in all 
36 national 
depart-
ments

April- Dec 
2010

4 reports per 
province pro-
duced
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Objective Two

To engage the religious sector, civil society organisations,  faith-based organisations, religious 
and tradition leaders and traditional healers to develop a strategy to change gender 
perceptions and increase women’s representation in decision-making structures and to 
ensure gender-sensitive implementation of their  respective mandates

Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

4.6. Develop 
partner-
ships 
to raise 
awareness 
and under-
standing of 
the rights 
to gender 
equality in 
the imple-
mentation 
of cultural, 
traditional 
and reli-
gious prac-
tices and 
legislative 
implica-
tions in two 
meetings

PEI/re-search 

1. Stake-
holders un-
der-stand 
the need to 
ensure that 
culture, tra-
dition and 
religious 
practices 
should not 
perpetuate 
gender 
inequality.  

March 
2010 - 
April 2011 

18 meetings 
were held as 
projecte.

2. Reports 
of meetings 
and re-
commen-
dations 
captured.
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Theme 5: Gender and HIV/AIDS

Goal: To monitor and make recommendations on the gendered responsive nature of existing 
HIV/AIDS legislation and programmes in terms of prevention, care, treatment and support.

Objective One

To assess policy and the implementation  of the broad framework for HIV/AIDS and STI strategic 
plan for South African 2007/11 to reduce women’s and the girl children’s vulnerability to 
HIV/AIDS

Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

5.1 Monitor 
awareness-
raising 
campaigns 
of govern-
ment on 
reproduc-
tive rights 
(cervical 
cancer) 
through es-
tablishment 
of partner-
ships/ Research & 

PEI
June- Nov 
2010

Four  meetings 
and 13 inter-
ventions were 
held

Conduct 
four meet-
ings 

Meetings 
held

Develop 
and sign 
TORs and 
MOUs

TOR’S and 
MOU’S 
Signed 

Conduct 
two inter-
ventions on 
reproduc-
tive rights

Inter-ven-
tions con

Follow-
up on 
recommen-
dations of 
the HIV/
AIDS and 
elderly per-
sons study. 
Facilitate 
meetings 
with the 
relevant

Re-search 
and PEI

Report 
produced 
from the 
meetings

May- Dec 
2010

Five interven-
tions held
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Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

the rel-
evant 
govern-
ment de-
partments 
to ensure 
compli-
ance to the 
recommen-
dations 
from CGE 
research 
report

Literature 
Review on 
Reviewed 
National 
Strate-
gic Plan 
on l HIV/
AIDS and 
STI plans. 
Identify 
gaps from 
a gender 
perspective 
and make 
recom-
menda-
tions for the 
improve-
ment of the 
plans.

CEDAW- 
Prevention 
and Edu-
cation pro-
grammes, 
to ensure 
access to 
education 
& infor-
mation. 
Increased 
public 
aware-
ness of the 
risk of HIV 
infections 
and AIDS, 
especially 
in women 
and chil-
dren.

Report inclu-
sive of Recom-
mendations 
produced.

Beijing- Im-
plement 
educa-
tion pro-
grammes 
and ac-
tions to 
combat 
the HIV and 
AIDS pan-
demic. To 
undertake 
gender 
sensitive ini-
tiatives that 
address 
sexually 
transmitted 
diseases

a) Sample test 
cases selected 
for monitoring 
reports pro-
duced
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Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

HIV and 
AIDS and 
sexual and 
reproduc-
tive heath 
issues.

Using 
sample 
test cases 
covering  
preven-
tion, care 
treatment 
and sup-
port com-
ponents in 
provinces 
to moni-
tor gender 
compli-
ance and 
the extent 
to which 
govern-
ment’s  
pro-
grammes 
protect 
vulnerable 
women 
and girls

Monitor 
aware-
ness raising 
campaigns 
of govern-
ment on 
reproduc-
tive rights
( Cervical 
Cancer) 
through 
establishing 
of part-
nerships/
networks/ 
collabora-
tions

June – 
Nov 2010

Conduct 4 
meetings 
Develop and 
sign TORs and 
MOUs
Conduct 2 in-
terventions on 
reproductive 

5.3 Complaints 
administra-
tion and 
manage-
ment

Finalised 
complaints 
Increased 
number of 
complaints

Ongoing Ongoing
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Theme six: Strengthening constitutional democracy and gender machinery

Goal: To monitor South African government adherence and compliance with international, 
regional and domestically focused instruments. To monitor the efficacy and functioning of 
the gender machinery

Objective One

To improve the efficacy, impact and delivery of gender equality

Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

6.1 A) develop 
a training 
of train-
ers pro-
gramme 
on interna-
tional instru-
ments, with 
specific 
focus on 
CEDAW

PEI

A-B) A train-
ing pro-
gramme 
developed

A-B)July 
2010

Concept pa-
per developed 
and circulated 
to committee

B) Set up a 
specialist 
reference 
group 

C) Estab-
lish a CGE 
training 
group 

C) Training 
group iden-
tified

C) April 
2010 

Training pro-
gramme not 
implemented

D) Devel-
opment of 
the training 
materials

D) Training 
manuals 
developed

D) June 
2010

Training materi-
als will only be 
developed af-
ter core group 
has been 
trained.

E) Conduct 
five training 
sessions for 
the CGE 
training 
group to 
ensure that 
CGE has 
expertise 
on interna-
tional instru-
ments.

E) Training 
conducted

E)June – 
Sep 2010

Training dates 
still need to 
be verified 
depending on 
availability of 
the trainer.
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Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

F) Obtain 
SAQA ac-
creditation 
for the CGE 
training

F) Ac-cred-
ited training 
cer-tificates

F) June 
2010

Accreditation 
will take place 
once training 
material has 
been finalised. 

 

6.2 Acquire 
accredita-
tion with 
ECOSOC

Legal

Accre-di-
tation and 
inde-pen-
dent par-
tici-pation 
on regional 
and inter-
national 
platforms

Jun 2010 Applied for 
accreditation. 
Accreditation 
was not grant-
ed.

6.3 CEDAW 
Project

All de-part-
ments

Draft report 
produced

April - Dec 
2010

Working group 
was estab-
lished.

6.3.1 CGE 
baseline 
report on 
the imple-
mentation 
of CEDAW 
- CGE 
collects 
data from 
all relevant 
govern-
ment de-
partments 
to prepare 
a report

Information 
was collected 
and collated.

Five meet-
ings of the 
CEDAW 
working 
group + 
one meet-
ing with 
expert from 
US to evalu-
ate CGE’s 
report.

Report was 
produced.
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Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

6.3.2           
Draft the 
CGE CE-
DAW report 
to the UN 
(critique of 
the gov-
ernment’s 
report.)

Report was 
shared with UN 
CEDAW com-
mittee in New 
York

6.3.2           
Engage 
with CE-
DAW com-
mittee on 
the   CGE 
UN report.

Report was ta-
bled in parlia-
ment

6.3.2           
Attend the 
CEDAW 
committee 
pre- session 
meeting in 
August in 
New York 
to present 
the CGE 
report and 
prepare 
for partici-
pation at 
January 
reporting 
session

Mock session 
was arranged 
and hosted.

6.3.2           
Tabling of 
the  CGE  
UN report in 
Parliament

Report has 
been pro-
duced,

6.3.2           
Participa-
tion at in-
ternational 
CEDAW 
committee 
meeting 
in January 
2011.
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Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

Provincial 
Seminars 
On The 
Findings Of 
The CEDAW 
Study.

6.4 Beijing +15 Report ta-
bled in Par-
liament

April 2010 - 
Jan 2011

Working group 
established

6.4.1 
Tabling of 
Part 1 (sum-
mary)of 
the Beijing 
report to 
Parliament

Report infor-
mation devel-
oped and col-
lated

National 
seminar on 
Beijing +15

Report pro-
duced.

Tabling of 
the provin-
cial reports 
to legisla-
tures 

One national 
and eight pro-
vincial reports 
produced

6.4.2 Iden-
tify organi-
sations that 
deal with 
Beijing 
Platform for 
Actions’ 10 
critical ar-
eas of con-
cern and 
engage 
with them 
on specific 
issues  iden-
tified in the 
CGE Beijing 
+15 Find-
ings 

Eight provincial 
launches took 
place and na-
tional report 
tabled in Par-
liament
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Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

6.5 Review 
South 
African 
reserva-
tions on the 
protocol to 
the African 
Charter 
on Human 
and Peo-
ple’s Rights 
on the  
Rights of 
Women in 
Africa and 
Engage the 
Portfolio 
Committee 
on Women 
with the 
intention 
to get the 
reservations 
removed

Legal

Reser-
vations re-
moved

April-Aug 
2010

Not completed

Letter 
requesting 
meeting 
with Parlia-
ment

Meeting 
with Parlia-
ment and 
invite AU 

6.6 CGE to pre-
pare and 
participate 
in the on-
line discus-
sions from 
August 
2010 to en-
sure that a 
statement 
is issued, 
in line with 
the theme 
for 2011.

All depart-
ments

CGE state-
ment to 
UN/CSW

Feb-2011 Two commis-
sioners attend-
ed the CSW.

Prepara-
tion for side 
events at 
UN level 
and identi-
fication of 
topics.
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Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

Application 
for venue 
by latest 31 
Dec2010.

National: 
two com-
missioners 
and two 
senior man-
agers

Provincial: 
funding 
sourced 
for two 
provinces 
to attend. 
Funding 
proposal to 
be devel-
oped. 

6.7 Common-
wealth 

All depart-
ments

Report on 
the analysis 
of govern-
ment report

To be con-
firmed

Deferred to 
next financial 
year

Working 
group from 
Beijing to 
do analysis 
of South Af-
rican com-
monwealth 
report at 
two meet-
ings

6.8. Attending 
NGM  and 
PGM meet-
ings

All depart-
ments

Meetings 
facilitated 

Ongoing/ 
needs 
basis

30 meetings 
attended out 
of 36

6.9. Launch 
of Beijing 
Reports

All depart-
ments

One  
launch per 
Province

April 2010 
- March 
2011

Eight launches 
held
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Objective Two

To improve the efficacy and impact of chapter 9 institutions in strengthening constitutional 
democracy without compromising the CGE’s gender equality mandate.

Activities/
Projects

Department Indicator Time 
Frame

Actual 
Performance 

Corrective 
Action

6.9. Established 
collabora-
tion with 
C9s.

All  depart-
ments

Signed 
MOUs and 
TORs guid-
ing the 
working re-
lation-ship 
between 
the organ-
isa-tions 
and CGE. 

Ongoing/ 
needs 
basis

50 meetings 
and interven-
tions held. 
Collaborations 
consolidated

5.7. Programme Communication

In 2010/11 various interactive tools to raise awareness and to educate stakeholders were 
used. Eighty per cent of publications developed by the Commission are designed and 
produced internally. The following publications are some of those produced in-house: 
South Africa’s compliance with the Beijing Declaration and Platform for Action, Report 
to the CEDAW committee on South Africa’s implementation of CEDAW, and A gendered 
review of South Africa’s implementation of the Millennium Development Goals. Overall, 
13 publications, including the Commission’s Annual Report, CGE’s corporate diary and 
pamphlets, were produced during the year 2010/11.

Television, radio and print media were used effectively to promote the programmes 
and projects of the CGE, notably by means of media briefings and press statements. 
Communications co-ordinated 511 interviews with key CGE role players, namely the 
office of the Chairperson, commissioners and staff members. The CGE monitored media 
regarding current affairs with gender implications. As commentary on issues of the day, the 
CGE prepared and issued at least 54 press statements on a variety of current/developing 
gender-related stories. In addition to proactive commentary,  other statements were issued 
in response to media requests.

The print media outlets used include Mail & Guardian, City Press, BUA (GCIS publication), 
Ripple Effect, Independent News, The Star, Pretoria News, Cape Argus, Daily News, DFA-
Diamond Fields Advertiser and Isolezwe. Through SAPA, the CGE was also able to reach a 
cross-audience in both print and electronic media (especially channel 59 cable news).
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5.8 Provincial Highlights

Western Cape

Western Cape Counter-trafficking Coalition

The Counter-trafficking Coalition has been in existence since 12 December 2007 and 
involves representatives from 14 civil society organisations. To date the forum, along with 
the CGE as one of its main contributors, has conducted workshops and information 
sessions to raise awareness in and around the Cape Town CBD, and has established a 
reference group to assist in improved service delivery when assisting victims of trafficking. 
Monthly CTC meetings are held and plans for hosting a provincial trafficking seminar/ 
conference on 25 and 26h November 2010 were finalised. The CTC also recently 
appointed a project coordinator to drive the POA of the CTC for the next 18 months. 
CGE and ANEX will be working closely with the co-ordinator to induct and train him 
for the position. Monthly CTC meetings continue and personnel took part in the third 
strategic planning session to finalise the POA for 2011. 

Western Cape End Hate Campaign

The Western Cape End Hate Alliance was launched in February 2008 at the Saartjie 
Baartman Centre and comprises various gay and lesbian organsations. The alliance 
focuses its work in three subcommittees, namely the: 

• legal cluster;

• faith cluster and

• community mobilization cluster.

Its primary areas of concern are:

• To monitor the SAPS and the manner in which they assist gay and lesbian individuals 
when receiving reports and investigating incidentsof violence being perpetrated 
against these people;

• To develop a marketing strategy to integrate the alliance’s activities and awareness 
campaigns to include the general public; 

• To mobilise support for activities, especially when attending court proceedings, e.g. 
the Zoliswa Nkonyana murder trial; and

• To improve its relationship with the NPA and media in reporting on and investigating 
cases of hate crime. 

The efforts of the End Hate Alliance were focused on six reported cases: 

• The Zoliswa Nkonyana murder trial scheduled to continue in the Khayelitsha 
magistrate’s court in September 2010;

• The Luanda Gantsho sexual assault case in Blue Downs magsitrate’s court in May 
2010; 

• The Sibongile Mpheko Murder and rape case in the Strand magistrate’s court; 
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• The Waldo Bester murder enquiry at the Vredenburg Magistrate’s’ Court; 

• The Desiree Higa rape case in the Khayelitsha Magistrates’ Court in June 2010 ; and

• The Fransien Louw assault case in Malmesbury regional court on 10 May 2010. 

The event was a great success. Most of the important gas, oil and energy companies 
attended, together with the relevant stakeholders in the province. The meeting was 
headed by Commissioner Yvette Abrahams and Kamraj Anirudhra. A formal report, which 
is available, was formulated by the service provider that was hired.. The conclusion after 
the dialogue was that the CGE should arrange for more discussion of this matter, as it led 
to understanding of and thinking about issues that the public never even realised were 
fettering their daily lives. The CGE agreed to make arrangements again for 2011/212.

Gender, HIV/AIDS awareness, prevention and care campaign/workshop 

The framework acknowledges the impact of HIV and AIDS on individuals and households 
as ‘enormous’ and draws specific attention to the vulnerable state of children, women, 
people with disabilities, people living with HIV and AIDS and other marginalised groups. 
The purpose of the campaign is to discuss better ways of raising awareness, prevention 
and care. It aims to create a platform where the youth in particular can relate  their 
experiences relating to HIV/ AIDS  and the impact of these on their lives . Furthermore, 
the purpose is to promote voluntary testing and counselling on HIV. This will ensure that 
people living with HIV are enabled to lead healthy and productive lives. Lastly, the focus 
is on identifying and addressing the special needs of women and children.

Measures taken are designed to alleviate the impact of HIV and AIDS and create an 
enabling social environment for care, treatment and support.The target audience for 
this workshop should be youth at a proportion of 70% and the elderly at a proportion 
30%, but not limited to these groups.
Schools in the surrounding area and the youth in the community of Delft were invited to 
attend a workshop. Parents, household members and elderly people were also invited. 
NGOs, CBOS and CDWs in the areas of Delft were invited to attend. Attendance was 
good, as the stakeholders in this partnership were showing interest in the event.

The event went very well and the stakeholders who were invited made very good 
contributions. Most of the people who attended were female youth, which made the 
event interesting, as they spoke about the challenges affecting them in hospitals and in the 
community. It was agreed that the way forward was for the CGE, LOVE LIFE, NAPWA and 
POMESA to take this initiative further in order to reach better understanding.

Northern Cape

Northern Cape Safer Cities Project

The provincial office was involved in the Safer Cities Project under the auspices of UNIFEM, 
with particular focus on gender violence in the public sphere where women are at the 
receiving end in most cases. Numerous meeting and interventions took place in this 
regard in the form of a forum comprising NGOs, government, civil society and Chapter 
9 institutions. The local municipality has a big role to play in this regard. Towards the end 
of the meeting a task team had to be established, including the CGE as a member. The 
WCNVAW regards the Northern Cape Province  as taking the lead in fast-tracking the 
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fight against crime and serving as an example of good practice, hence the urgency for 
representatives of the province to undertake a trip to Brazil in 2011. The project will focus 
on the following areas:

• The SAPS - current crime prevention programmes and the roll-out of CCTV cameras;

• The Taverns Forum - direct contact and liaison with CPF especially on the brutal 
murder at the Galeshewe cemetery and the installation of proper lighting through 
the support of Sol Plaatje municipality;

• Recreational facilities in order to avoid alcohol abuse;

• The Business against Crime initiative in Kathu as an example of good practice; 

• The involvement of organised labour (trade unions) and government; and

• Training and development of field workers and NGOs in the fight against crime.

KwaZulu-Natal

KwaZulu-Natal Sugarcane serial killings case in Shayamoya

The sugarcane serial killings case in Shayamoya, outside Umzinto, was finally finalised. 
The CGE had been monitoring this case since 2008. The serial killer, Mr Thozamile Taki, was 
given 13 life sentences and 208 years’ imprisonment in the high court. This was a victory 
against gender-based violence in our country and most certainly in the province. 

Manyiseni (service delivery) 

This year saw the GCE partner with Amnesty International to address the plight of the 
community of Manyiseni on service delivery that is influencing gender equality. This 
matter has been escalated to the cabinet for the attention of the Premier and provincial 
MECs. It is to be noted that the CGE is making significant progress this matter. 

Domestic Partnerships Bill

The provincial office hosted a dialogue with relevant stakeholders, including print and 
electronic media, private attorneys and religious and traditional structures, on the 
Domestic Partnerships Bill. Discussions of challenges experienced by both community 
members and attorneys in dealing with this matter in the event of the death of one 
partner brought most participants to agree that there is a great need to support this bill. 
It also transpired that many people have always thought that common law marriage in 
South Africa is indeed official. 

Mass male circumcision

The introduction of mass male circumcision and the use of the Tara Klamp apparatus 
by the Department of Health in KZN was a very shocking development. The CGE called 
on partners including the Department of Health and the company that makes the Tara 
Klamp to engage in dialogue to gain more information on the apparatus and raised 
concern about its gendered implications. The CGE will be engaging further with the 
department on the matter. 
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Gauteng

Gauteng Position of women and realities of women in the religious sector

Some issues and rules influenced by a religious context have had a negative impact on 
achieving gender equality and transformation. In order to address such challenges, the 
Gauteng office partnered with the SACC and formalised the partnership to organize a 
dialogue collaboratively as a first step with the youth sector of the SACC to discuss religious 
barriers that have a negative impact on gender equality (see event report). 

The dialogue focused on addressing the position of women and the realities of women 
in the religious sector, inequality and power relationships, rigid and conservative doctrine, 
gender discourse and lack of participation by the youth in transformation processes in the 
religious sector. Both institutions agreed on strengthening and sustaining the partnership 
by organising future activities and further sensitising the religious sector on issues of gender 
equality. This will include capacity building and consideration of gender and sexuality issues 
as part of anticipating change and transformation and challenging mindsets in order to 
address stereotypes.

Eastern Cape

Eastern Cape Stakeholder engagement

The CGE Eastern Cape continues to position itself as a catalyst on gender-related matters 
in the province through networking and establishing good working relations with other 
stakeholders that might have similar objectives as the CGE. For the financial year 2010/2011 
the CGE Eastern Cape has experienced an increase in the number of complaints reported 
to the office by the public, as well as media coverage of its programmes, and has been 
given the opportunity to respond to gender-related complaints reported by the media. 

The CGE Eastern Cape office has partnered with a number of institutions to promote gender 
equality and some of the activities that the office has been involved in include campaigns 
and meetings with provincial stakeholders such as Chapter 9 forum members ( OPPSA 
and SAHRC), Imbumba Yamakhosikazi Akomkhulu (IYA), RULIV, Eastern Cape AIDS Council, 
University of Forth Hare Gender Forum and Niagara College in Canada (Ms Lise Hamilton, 
intern from Canadian International Development Agency from Niagra College). Moreover, 
the office has established good working relations with SAPS and as a result partnered with 
the SAPS during the 16 Days of Activism in a road show on human trafficking targeting areas 
in the Buffalo City municipality.  

• Eastern Cape AIDS Council, University of Fort Hare Gender Forum and RULIV 

The office, together with the Eastern Cape AIDS Council, successfully held the Nokuzo Mfiki 
Memorial Lecture at the University of Fort Hare, in order to commemorate Mfiki and to raise 
awareness about the stigmatisation of HIV positive people by the public. This event was a 
resounding success and civil organizations in the AIDS sector were part of the programme. 
As part of a national study on the Beijing Platform for Action, MDGs and CEDAW, the research 
unit at provincial level collected data that will inform part of these research findings, which 
cut across issues concerning HIV and AIDS. 
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• The CGE presented a research report during the information session on HIV and AIDS 
among elderly persons.

• Two information sessions were held on HIV and AIDs, and elderly persons and 
reproductive rights.

• One dialogue was held as a follow-up to the recommendations on HIV and AIDS 
among elderly persons.

Mpumalanga

The provincial Office held a human trafficking campaign as part of the activities that were 
rolled out Women’s month.  This was a follow-up on the “Red Card campaign that was held 
in April 2010. This campaign was held at Hartebeesport near the Oshoek border gate. The 
campaign was in threefold, namely to assist the Human Trafficking task Team Members to 
inform learners from ten different schools in the area about human trafficking; to formally 
address members of the SAPS and community on the issues of human trafficking.  The Office 
also embarked on distributing pamphlets to motorists passing through the border post.

Free State

The office held  a number information sessions on Law of Succession and Inheritance in the 
Motheo District, Mangaung, Thabanchu amd Maluti A Phofung districts respectively. These 
areas were targeted because the office had received many complaints from this district 
and this  was one of the outcomes of the meeting held with FS House of Traditional Leaders 
in May 2010. 

In these villages the cultural practices regarding inheritances still applies i.e boys inherit when 
the father passes on. And from the questions raised by the community members it was clear 
that; what the member of Dikweng Tribal Council presented during the information session 
and what they practice is completely different, as girls and women are not consulted when 
handling issues of Inheritance and Succession.

During the intervention it became clear that rural communities still approach the Chief and 
Tribal Council members to address their issues.

North West 

The province in partnership with Land Access Movement of SA(LAMOSA) held a roundtable 
discussion on the challenges facing women’s access to land. The intended results were:
Awareness raising of women land rights

• Mobilisation of political support at community level with respect to women land 
rights

• Documented cases of women access and control of land

• Improved access and support for sustainable farming
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Limpopo

CGE in partnership with Thusanang (NGO) and other C9s (Public Protector and Human Rights 
Commission) and the South African Police Services (SAPS) held and conducted workshops 
on poverty and human rights issues in several communities – Mopani West (Mamabolo area).

CGE continues to partner and collaborate in order to raise awareness among women and 
traditional  leaders on gender equality and its impact on women’s vulnerability to HIV and 
AIDS.



87

ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011
 Commission for Gender Equality  

2010 - 2011 2010 - 2011

6. Finance and administration

61.  Spending plan – The Annual budget for the year ending 31 March 2011

The Commission is primarily funded by National Treasury and seldom receives donor finance 
for specific projects being undertaken, albeit inconsequential. The funds allocated in 
terms of the budget are spent on three Operating programs in addition to an insignificant 
expenditure on capital goods. The table illustrates the spread of planned spending according 
to the allocations by National Treasury approved through the Medium Term Expenditure 
Framework (MTEF) process for the financial year under review.

6.1.1.  The budget allocation for the financial year: 2010/2011

COMMISSIONERS: 
GOVERNANCE & 
SUPPORT 

CORPORATE 
SUPPORT 

 PROGRAMMES  CAPITAL 
EXPENDITURE 

Grand 
Total 

 % spread by 
economic 
classification 

Compensation 
of Employees

 8,219,867  6,654,791  20,302,015  35,176,673 68%

Goods & 
Services

 1,234,800  6,828,900  7,143,300  15,207,000 29%

Capital 
expnditure

 1,565,327  1,565,327 3%

Grand Total  9,454,667  13,483,691  27,445,315  1,565,327  51,949,000 100%

% spread by 
program

18% 26% 53% 3% 100%

The nature and composition of the Commission’s budget is such that up to 53% of the 
allocation is spent on direct service delivery program.  It can also be seen that the main 
program consumes 58% or R20, 3 million (from a budget total of R35 m) on Compensation 
of Employees and correspondingly R7, 1 million (or 47%) on Goods & Services set aside for 
activities planned for the year.

6.2.  Financial Performance

For the reporting period under review, the Commission has recorded a net surplus of                  
R2,5 million compared with a deficit of R2,3 million recorded for the previous financial 
year that ended on 31 March 2010. The income generation and spending activities will be 
adequately dealt with in the analysis contained in the ensuing paragraphs.

6.2.1  Income

The Commission received transfers from National Treasury amounting to R51, 95 million 
compared to R49, 11million granted in the previous financial year. The increase in the grant 
from national coffers represents a nominal adjustment of 6% year on year and is consistent 
with adjustments that were made in the past medium range which realized at a 6% over the 
three years as is diagrammatically shown below.
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In addition, the Commission received donor funding to the amount of R127, 805 from UNIFEM, 
an agency of the United Nations. The donation funded activities under the CEDAW mock 
trial project which is more fully reported on under the service delivery sections of this report. 
A further, albeit it insignificant sundry income of R79, 167 was received from small internal 
sources such as the sale of used paper and interest income from positive bank balances.

6.2.2  Expenditure

In the Commission, three main programmes are run in pursuit of service delivery and execution 
of the legislative mandate. These are comprised of a program for the Commissioners, led 
by the Chairperson and two sub programs within the secretariat under the leadership of 
the Chief Executive Officer which are the Major Service Delivery or Core program and 
corporate support program. 

In this period, expenditure incurred stood at R49, 8 million, constituted mainly of Compensation 
to employees at R29, 9 million (or 60% of total spend), Goods and Services at R17 million (or 
34%), depreciation at R2, 7 million (5%) and capital expenditure of R180, 891.

Actual expenditure for the 12 months period ending 31 March 2011
 COMMISSIONERS: 

GOVERNANCE & 
SUPPORT 

 CORPORATE 
SUPPORT 

 
PROGRAMMES 

CAPITAL 
EXPENDITURE

 Grand 
Total 

% spread by 
economic 

classification

Compensation 
of Employees

 5,566,679  6,399,695  17,971,185  29,937,560 60%

 Goods & 
Services 

 1,509,171  8,938,997  6,513,985  16,962,153 34%

Capital 
expenditure

 180,891  180,891 0%

Depreciation 
and 
amortisation

 2,681,411  2,681,411 5%

Grand Total  7,075,850  18,020,104  24,485,170  180,891  49,762,015 

% spread by 
program

14% 36% 49% 0.4% 100%
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Compared to the budget of R 9, 45 million, the program for Commissioners recorded 
expenditure at R7, 07 million, representing a 4% saving (R2, 4 million) mainly because of 
under-spending on salaries due to vacant Commissioner Positions.

The program on corporate support reported an overspending on the budget R4, 5 million 
mainly due to a provision for depreciation expense of R2, 7 million which was not budgeted 
for. The remaining unfavourable variance is as a result of higher expenditure on professional 
services as well as travel and accommodation. 

In proportion to total expenditure, the major program realized at a favourable percentage 
than was anticipated in the budget. The budget made provision to spend 53%  (or R27,44 
million)on major program but actual spending realized at R R24, 48 million (or 49%). The 
saving of R2, 96 million is attributable to vacancies as well as efficiency gains from the 
spending on goods & services.

The spending on Capital Expenditure realized at less than half a percent of the Budget 
because of delays experienced in the roll-out of the IT infrastructure project. R180, 891 was 
spent whilst a budget of R1, 56 million was set aside.

For all programs, a detailed analysis shall be made herein at account level in paragraphs 
that follow. The diagram hereunder graphically illustrates the actual spending patterns 
realized for the year under review.

Expenditure per program and economic classification

Aggregate Actual Spending:

• Compensation of 
Employees at 60% of total

• Goods & Services at 34% 
of the total

• Capital Expenditure at 
0.4% of total

• Depreciation & 
amortization at 5% of total

Total spending for the year was 
R49, 76 million
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Of the 60% or R29, 9 million spent on Compensation for employees, R18 million(or 60% of 
Salary Bill)  went to the major core service delivery program, R6.4 million to Corporate 
Support(or 21%) and R5, 6 million(or 19%) to Commissioner’s remuneration.

Goods & services, Capital expenditure and depreciation constitute the remainder and shall 
be discussed further in this document.

6.2.3 Year on Year Comparatives - Expenditure per department and location

In the Commission, the expenditure control and management is conducted through cost 
centres or departments which are either functionally or geographically based. Accordingly, 
the table below presents expenditure recorded during the year under review. 

Current Year : 2010/2011

Department/Location COMMISSIONERS: 
GOVERNANCE & 
SUPPORT

CORPORATE 
SUPPORT

PROGRAMMES CAPITAL 
EXPENDITURE

Grand Total

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  2,383,471  2,383,471 

CHIEF OPERATIONS OFFICER  172,532  172,532 

COMMISSIONERS  7,075,850  7,075,850 

COMMUNICATIONS  1,149,401  1,149,401 

CORPORATE  2,936,067  2,936,067 

EASTERN CAPE  2,100,581  2,100,581 

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION  7,398,644  7,398,644 

FREE STATE  1,606,565  1,606,565 

GAUTENG  1,758,156  1,758,156 

HUMAN RESOURCES  2,300,200  2,300,200 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY  1,852,322  1,852,322 

KWAZULU - NATAL  1,989,838  1,989,838 

LEGAL  1,494,377  1,494,377 

LIMPOPO  1,866,051  1,866,051 

MPUMALANGA  1,886,237  1,886,237 

NORTH WEST  1,851,394  1,851,394 

NORTHERN CAPE  1,846,727  1,846,727 

PUBLIC EDUCATION & INFORMATION  744,575  744,575 

RESEARCH  1,513,500  1,513,500 

WESTERN CAPE  2,446,395  2,446,395 

MAIN PROJECT DIRECT COSTS  3,208,243  3,208,243 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE  180,891  180,891 

Grand Total  7,075,850  18,020,104  24,485,170  180,891  49,762,015 

Spending has declined from a restated amount of R51, 6 million incurred in 2009/2010 
financial year to R49, 8 million during the year under review. The net result is a comparable 
under-spending of R1, 7 million and is attributable to the following programs and cost centers;

• A R2, 1 million comparable favourable variance on the Commissioners program 
was recorded mainly attributable to under-spending on Salaries due to 
vacancies

• A R2, 5 million year on year saving on Corporate Support, primarily as a result  of 
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the decrease in depreciation and amortization provision due to the age and 
diminishing carrying value on Property, Plant and Equipment

• An increased spending on the main and major service delivery program 
amounts to R2, 8 million, off-setting the above noted comparable decrease in 
spending.

Prior Year : 2009/2010 - Restated

Department/Location COMMISSIONERS: 
GOVERNANCE & 
SUPPORT

CORPORATE 
SUPPORT

PROGRAMMES CAPITAL 
EXPENDITURE

Grand Total

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  3,646,946  3,646,946 

CHIEF OPERATIONS OFFICER  371,248  371,248 

COMMISSIONERS  9,236,865  9,236,865 

COMMUNICATIONS  750,825  750,825 

CORPORATE  4,671,063  4,671,063 

EASTERN CAPE  1,721,987  1,721,987 

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION  7,878,639  7,878,639 

FREE STATE  1,719,623  1,719,623 

GAUTENG  1,541,619  1,541,619 

HUMAN RESOURCES  1,609,848  1,609,848 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY  1,967,597  1,967,597 

KWAZULU - NATAL  1,985,258  1,985,258 

LEGAL  2,194,596  2,194,596 

LIMPOPO  1,722,902  1,722,902 

MPUMALANGA  1,865,577  1,865,577 

NORTH WEST  1,451,262  1,451,262 

NORTHERN CAPE  1,750,480  1,750,480 

PUBLIC EDUCATION & INFORMATION  716,886  716,886 

RESEARCH  1,832,526  1,832,526 

WESTERN CAPE  2,839,931  2,839,931 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE  32,866  32,866 

Grand Total  9,236,865  20,524,918  21,713,896  32,866  51,508,544 
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6.2.4  Detailed analysis of year to year spending

6.2.4.1  Accounts under spending

 Expense line - aggregated   Current 
year Actuals 

  Budget 
2010-2011 

 Prior Year 
Actuals - 
Restated 

 Variance % 
Act v Budget 

 Variance 
% Current v 
Prev Actuals 

Compensation of Employees  29,937,560  35,176,673  30,727,763 18% 3%

Computer Servicing, Internet & Website  833,276  1,037,700  869,303 25% 4%

Depreciation and amortisation  2,681,411  3,691,045 -100% 38%

EquipmR5000-Equipement  440  799 -100% 81%

Events & Catering  584,798  2,951,700  1,936,394 405% 231%

Finance Charges: Penalties & Interest  225,302  1,128,051 -100% 401%

Municipal Services  332,724  690,556 -100% 108%

Office Cleaning, Maintenance, Plants & 
Security

 930,412  794,900  996,633 -15% 7%

Office Consumables  67,425  27,500  362,754 -59% 438%

Telecommunication Expenses  2,399,783  2,316,800  2,481,821 -3% 3%

TrainingStaff Dev-MatManuals  16,270  248,795 -100% 1429%

6.2.4.2  Accounts over spending

 Expense line - aggregated   Current 
year Actuals 

  Budget 
2010-2011 

 Prior Year 
Actuals - 
Restated 

 Variance % 
Act v Budget 

 Variance 
% Current v 
Prev Actuals 

Advertising  44,058  90,000  (2,396) 104% -105%

Bank Charges - First National Bank  27,733  21,400  25,454 -23% -8%

Courier Services  177,481  180,000  143,062 1% -19%

Interest Paid on Bank overdraft  62,678  11,974 -100% -81%

Printing & Stationery  1,617,727  690,400  800,139 -57% -51%

Professional Services  4,001,022  3,219,600  3,024,333 -20% -24%

Travel, Accommodation and Related 
Expenditure

 5,528,400  3,877,000  3,457,800 -30% -37%

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE  180,891  1,565,327  32,866 765% -82%

Loss on disposal of assets  112,622  -   -100% -100%

6.3.  Financial Position

6.3.1  Net asset position

The balance sheet position has substantially improved as is evidenced by a positive net 
asset position recorded as at the end of the current period. The restated total net asset 
stood at a negative amount of R969, 627 in the previous period and has moved to a positive 
balance of R1, 605, 222 in the current year mainly due to improvement in the profit situation. 
The movement is mainly explained by the surplus of R2, 6 million recorded in 2010/2011 
compared to prior period, where a deficit of R2, 3 million (restated) was recorded. The 
improvement in the current ratio and liquidity situation has also favourably contributed to 
the improved net asset situation.
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6.3.2  Liquidity position

The current ratio for the period under review is 93% compared to 22% on restated balances. 
This indicates that although the current assets held by the Commission increased in a 
comparable proportion between the two financial years ( 2009/10 & 2010/11), the liquidity 
or the cover of current liabilities by  current assets is weak, however, a notable material 
improvement was recorded as at the end of the current period.

6.3.3  Cash and cash equivalents

The cash ratio for the current period stood at 92% compared to 22% in the previous year as 
restated. This also shows that cash and cash equivalents underlie the balance of current 
assets in the statement of financial position. The cash balance was R1, 6 million by year end 
in the previous period and has increased to R8, 8 million by close of  the year under review.

6.3.4  Non-current Assets

The carrying values on Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) is diminishing mainly because of 
age and correspondingly the economic usefulness of these assets. As at 31 March 2011, the 
carrying values declined from R4, 9 million at the end of the prior period to R2, 2 million in 
the current period. The movement between the two balances is primarily depreciation and 
amortization provided for in the current financial year.

6.3.5  Liabilities

The liabilities recorded are made out of current liabilities in total, representing the general 
trade and staff related payables. There has been an increase of R2, 1 million in the liabilities 
from R7, 5 million in the previous period to a total of R9, 6 million. The liabilities carried in the 
current period are 86% of total assets, reflecting an additional 14% cover, an equivalent of 
the net asset to total assets ratio. This compares with an unfavourable situation reflected 
by the restated balances, which shows that liabilities exceeded total assets by R969, 627 
or 15%. The situation is improving concomitantly so with the advances been made with 
regards to financial management by the current administration.
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7. REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON 
THE COMMISSION FOR GENDER EQUALITY FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction 

1. I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Commission for Gender 
Equality, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2011, and 
the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets and cash 
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 99 to 134.

Accounting officer’s responsibility for the financial statements

2. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 
these financial statements in accordance with South African Standards of Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of 
the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), 
and for such internal control as management determines necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.

Auditor-General’s responsibility 

3. As required by section 188 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 
(Act No. 108 of 1996), section 4 of the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 
25 of 2004) (PAA) and section 9(3) of the Commission on Gender Equality Act of South 
Africa, 1996 (Act No. 39 of 1996), my responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on my audit.

4. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and 
General Notice 1111 of 2010 issued in Government Gazette 33872 of 15 December 
2010. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement.

5. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 
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6. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

7. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Commission for Gender Equality as at 31 March 2011, and its 
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with SA 
Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA.

Emphasis of matters

8. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these 
matters.

Irregular expenditure

9. As disclosed in note 17 to the financial statements, the commission incurred irregular 
expenditure of R10 339 703. 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

10. As disclosed in note 18 to the financial statements, the commission incurred fruitless 
and wasteful expenditure of R206 989. 

Restatement of corresponding figures 

11. As disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 
March 2010 have been restated as a result of an error discovered during 2011 in the 
financial statements of the commission at, and for the year ended, 31 March 2010. 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

12. In accordance with the PAA and in terms of General Notice 1111 of 2010 issued in 
Government Gazette 33872 of 15 December 2010, I include below my findings on the 
annual performance report as set out on pages 35 to 86 and material non-compliance 
with laws and regulations applicable to the constitutional institution.

Predetermined objectives 

Presentation of information

13. The reported performance against predetermined objectives was deficient in respect 
of the following criterion:

• Performance against predetermined objectives was not reported using the 
National Treasury guidelines. 

14. The following audit finding relates to the above criterion:

• Reasons for major variances between planned and actual reported targets were 
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not explained in the report on predetermined objectives.

Usefulness of information

15. The reported performance information was deficient in respect of the following criteria:

• Consistency: The reported objectives were not consistent with the approved 
annual performance plan.

• Measurability: The targets as per the annual performance plan were not specific, 
measurable and time bound.

16. The following audit findings relate to the above criteria:

• The reported objectives, indicators and targets were not complete when 
compared to the planned objectives, indicators and targets.

• Planned and reported targets were not specific, measurable and time bound.

Compliance with laws and regulation

Strategic planning and performance management

17. The accounting officer did not establish procedures for quarterly reporting to the 
executive authority in order to facilitate effective performance monitoring, evaluation 
and corrective action, as required by Treasury Regulation (TR) 5.3.1.

Expenditure management

18. The accounting officer did not take effective and appropriate steps to prevent irregular 
as well as fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as per the requirements of section 38(1)
(c)(ii) of the PFMA.

19. Not all payments due to creditors were settled within 30 days from receipt of an invoice, 
as per the requirements of section 38(1)(f) of the PFMA and TR 8.2.3.

Procurement contract management 

20. Contrary to TR 16A.4.1, the accounting officer did not establish a separate supply 
chain management unit within the office of the institution’s chief financial officer, to 
implement the institution’s supply chain management system for the first three quarters 
of the year under review.

21. Goods and services with a transaction value between R10 000 and R500 000 were 
procured without inviting at least three written price quotations from prospective 
suppliers, contrary to the requirement of Practice Note 8 of 2007-08 issued in terms of 
section 76(4)(c) of the PFMA.

22. Goods and services with a transaction value above R500 000 were not procured by 
means of a competitive bidding process, contrary to the requirements of TR 16A.6.1, 
TR 16A.6.4 and National Treasury Practice Notes 6 and 8 of 2007-08.
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Asset management 

23. The accounting officer did not ensure that a proper control system existed for assets to 
eliminate theft, losses, wastage and misuse, as per the requirement of TR 10.1.

Financial misconduct

24. Contrary to section 66(1) of the PFMA, the commission had debit bank balances at 
some stage during the period under review and no approval for temporary bank 
overdrafts was obtained from the minister of Finance as required by the said section 
of the PFMA. 

Annual financial statements, performance report and annual report

25. The accounting officer submitted financial statements for auditing that had not 
been prepared in all material aspects in accordance with generally recognised 
accounting practice, as required by section 40(1)(a) and (b) of the PFMA. The material 
misstatements identified by the AGSA with regard to contingent liabilities and provisions 
were subsequently corrected. 

INTERNAL CONTROL 

26. In accordance with the PAA and in terms of General Notice 1111 of 2010 issued in 
Government Gazette 33872 of 15 December 2010, I considered internal control relevant 
to my audit, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control. The matters reported below are limited to the significant deficiencies 
that resulted in the findings on the annual performance report and the findings on 
compliance with laws and regulations included in this report.

Leadership

27. The accounting officer and management did not exercise oversight responsibility 
regarding financial and performance reporting and compliance as well as related 
internal controls. 

28. 28. Management did not develop and monitor the implementation of action plans to 
address internal control deficiencies.

 
Financial and performance management

29. Management did not prepare regular, accurate and complete financial and 
performance reports that were supported and evidenced by reliable information.

30. Furthermore, the commission did not review and monitor compliance with applicable 
laws and regulations.
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OTHER REPORTS 
Investigations

31. Two investigations were conducted by two independent parties on request of the 
former deputy speaker of Parliament. The requests were based on complaints and 
allegations of improper conduct, financial impropriety and maladministration at the 
commission. The investigations covered the years ended 31 March 2008 and 31 March 
2009.

                                                   

Pretoria

30 July 2011
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Statement of Responsibility and approval of Annual Financial Statements

The accounting officer is responsible for monitoring the preparation and the integrity of 
the financial statements and related information included in this annual report. In order 
for the accounting officer to discharge these responsibilities, as well as those bestowed on 
it in terms of the Public Finance Management Act and other applicable legislation, it has 
developed and maintained a system of internal controls.

The accounting officer acknowledges that management is ultimately responsible for 
the system of internal financial controls established by the CGE and place considerable 
importance on maintaining strong control environment. To enable the accounting officer 
to meet these responsibilities, the Commissioners sets standards for internal control aimed 
at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. These standards include the 
proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting 
procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These 
controls are monitored throughout the CGE and all employees are required to maintain the 
highest ethical standards in ensuring the CGE’s mandate is conducted in a manner that, 
in all reasonable circumstances, is above reproach. The focus of risk management is on 
identifying, assessing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the CGE

While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the CGE endeavours to minimize it by ensuring 
that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behavior are applied and 
managed within predetermined procedures and constraints. Monitoring of these controls 
includes a regular review of their operations by the accounting officer and independent 
oversight by an audit committee.

As part of the system of internal control, the internal audit function conducts operational, 
financial and specific audits and co-ordinates audit coverage with the external auditors. 
The external auditors are responsible for reporting on the financial statements.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance Standards of Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practices (GRAP), including any interpretations of such Statements issued 
by the Accounting Practices Board. They are based on appropriate accounting policies 
consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgment and estimates.

The accounting officer believes that the Commission for Gender Equality will continue to be 
a going concern in the foreseeable future due to the availability of funding from National 
Treasury. For this reason the accounting officer continues to adopt the going concern basis 
in preparing the annual financial statements.

The accounting officer approved the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 
March 2011 as set out on pages 102 to 134 on 31 May 2011 which were signed on its behalf 
by

                                                                
    
Mfanozelwe Shozi   Keketso Meama 
Acting Chairperson   Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 31 March 2011

Note 2011 2010 
Restated

Revenue
Revenue from non-exchange transactions 2 51,949,000  49,112,000
Exchange revenue 3  206,972 26,477 
Total revenue 52,155,972 49,138,477

Expenses
Administrative expenses 4  15,114,972 14,100,041 
Personnel 5  29,937,559 30,722,575 
Other operating expenses 6  1,649,292 2,442,466 
Finance costs 7  85,267  330,914 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 11  2,681,411 3,686,980 
Total expenses 49,468,502 51,282,977 

Assets written off 8  (112,622) (185,203) 

Surplus/(Deficit) for the period 2,574,849 (2,329,703)



103

ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011
 Commission for Gender Equality  

2010 - 2011 2010 - 2011

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2011

Note 2011 2010 
Restated

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalent 9  8,870,501  1,611,070 
None exchange receivable 10  105,162  -   

 8,975,663  1,611,070 

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 11  2,265,356  4,854,560 
Intangible assets 11  -    25,956 

 2,265,356  4,880,516 

 11,241,019  6,491,586 
Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Exchange payables 12  4,880,652  5,440,808 
Provisions 13  4,755,145  2,020,405 
Total liabilities  9,635,797  7,461,213 

Net assets  1,605,222  (969,627) 

NET ASSETS

Accumulated surplus/(deficit)  1,605,222  (969,627) 

Total Net Assets  1,605,222  (969,627) 
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the year ended 31 March 2011

Note Accumulated 
surplus/(deficit)

Total: net asset

Balance at 1 April 2009  420,485  420,485 
Property, plant and equipment omitted in
prior year 11  58,884  58,884 
Prior period error 14  880,707  880,707 
Restated balance  1,360,076  1,360,076 
Surplus/(Deficit) for the period restated 14  (2,329,703)  (2,329,703) 
Balance at 31 March 2010 restated  (969,627)  (969,627) 
Surplus/(Deficit) for the period  2,574,849  2,574,849 
Balance at 31 March 2011  1,605,222  1,605,222 
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2011

Note 2011 2010 
Restated

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts from stakeholders  52,155,972  49,138,477 
Grants 2  51,949,000  49,112,000 
Interest received 3  6,160  9,989 
Other income 3  200,812  16,488 

Cash paid to stakeholders  44,717,650  47,479,238 
Personnel & Suppliers  44,715,512  47,471,433 
Interest paid 7  2,138  7,805  

Net cash flows from operating activities 15  7,438,322  1,659,239 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed assets 8  (180,891)  (32,866) 
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 8  2,000  -   

Net cash flows from investing activities  (178,891)  (32,866) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of finance lease liabity  -    (286,733) 

Net cash flows from financing activities  -    (286,733) 

Net increase/(decrease) in net cash and 
cash equivalent

 7,259,431  1,339,640 

Net cash and cash equivalents at the 
beginning of period

 1,611,070  271,430 

Net cash and cash equivalents at end of 
period 9  8,870,501  1,611,070 
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1.    Accounting Policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the effective Standards 
of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) including any interpretations, 
guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

1.1  Reporting entity

The CGE is an institution established in terms of Chapter Nine of the Republic of South Africa 
Constitution Act (Act No. 108 of 1996) and is responsible for 

• the  promotion for the respect of gender equality ;

• protection, development and attainment of gender equality

Its additional mandate is further provided for in the Commission on Gender Equality Act (Act 
No. 39 of 1996) as amended.

The primary objective of Chapter Nine institutions, including the CGE, is to strengthen 
constitutional democracy.

The core business of the CGE is:-

• to promote gender equality

• to advise

• to make recommendations to Parliament or

• any other legislature with regard to any laws or proposed legislation that affects 
gender equality and the status of women

The principle accounting policies applied in the preparation and presentation of these 
financial statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to the years presented, unless otherwise 
stated:        

• Consideration was made on whether the accounting policy is reasonable, 
given the circumstances of the CGE and noted that it is important and 
reasonable as well.

• Consideration was made on the impact of this deviation on the audit report 
and recommendation to adjust as to comply with the financial reporting 
statements (GRAP).

1.2  Basis of preparation

1.2.1   Basis for measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except where 
otherwise indicated.
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1.2.2  Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in South African rands, which is the CGE’s 
functional currency. All financial information presented in rands has been rounded to the 
nearest rand, unless otherwise stated.

1.2.3 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumption

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, 
estimate and assumption that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates. Estimated and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is 
revised and in any future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical 
judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the 
amount recognised in the financial statements in given in the following notes:

Property, plant and equipment

Property, vehicles, plant and equipment and Intangible assets are depreciated over their 
useful life taking into account residual values, where appropriate.  The actual lives of the 
assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary depending on a number of 
factors.  In reassessing asset lives, factors such as technological innovation and maintenance 
programmes are taken into account.  Residual value assessments consider issues such as 
future market conditions, the remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values.  

Going concern

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the going concern principle 
and on an accrual basis with the measurement base applied being the historical cost unless 
stated otherwise. The going concern basis presumes that funds will be available to finance 
future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent 
obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

Provisions and contingent assets and liabilities

A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount. In general sense, all provisions are 
contingent because they are uncertain timing or amount. However, General Recognised 
Accounting Principle, the term “contingent” is used for liabilities and assets that are not 
recognised because their existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the CGE.
      
Management discussed with the Audit Committee the development, selection and 
disclosure of the CGE’s critical accounting policies and estimates, and the application of 
these policies and estimates.

1.3 New standards and interpretations not yet effective

• GRAP 18 - Segment Reporting

• GRAP 25 - Employee Benefits
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• GRAP 104 - Financial Instruments

• GRAP 105 - Transfer of Functions between Entities Under Common Control

• GRAP 106 - Transfer of Functions between Entities Not Under Common Control

• GRAP 107 - Mergers

1.4 hese standards were approved, and an effective date has been set, but they are  
 not applicable yet:

• GRAP 21 - Impairment of Non-cash-generating Assets 

• GRAP 23 - Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions

• GRAP 24 - Presentation of Budget Information in Financial

• GRAP 26 - Impairment of Cash-generating Assets 

• GRAP103 - Heritage Assets

1.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefit will flow 
to the CGE and the revenue can be reliable measured. The following specific recognition 
criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised. Revenue is derived substantially 
from the grants allocated by National Treasury.

1.5.1 Transfers from other government entities

A transfer from other government entities constitutes transfer payments from the Department 
of Women and Children and People with disabilities.

The CGE recognises revenue from transfers in the period in which the transfer becomes 
binding, that it is when the asset transferred meets the definition of an asset for the CGE and 
the recognition criteria for an asset has been met.

Assets and revenue recognised as a consequence of a transfer are measured at the fair 
value of the assets recognised as at the date of recognition.

Monetary assets are measured at their nominal value unless the time value of money is 
material, in which case present value is used, calculated using a discount rate that reflects 
the risk inherent in holding the asset. Non-monetary assets are measured at their fair value. 
This represents a change in accounting policy.

Receivables are recognised when a binding transfer arrangement is in place but cash or 
other assets have not been received

Transfers from other government entities 

The CGE analyses all stipulations contained in transfer agreements to determine if it incurs a 
liability when it accepts transferred resources.
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1.5.2 Interest income

Interest income constitutes is accrued on favourable balances with commercial banking 
institutions. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal 
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to 
that asset’s net carrying amount.

1.5.3 Gains or losses on disposal

Gains or losses on disposal are included in surplus or deficit for the year and are determined 
by comparing sales proceeds to the carrying amounts.

1.5.4 Other income

Other income is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the 
CGE and is measured at their fair-value of the consideration received or receivable.

1.6 Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would 
have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised. 

Irregular expenditure means expenditure, other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred 
in contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable 
legislation including the Public Finance Management Act.

All irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditures are charged against the surplus in the 
period in which they occur. These expenditures will be disclosed separately in the annual 
financial statements.

1.7 Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure is expenditure that has not been budgeted, expenditure that is 
not in terms of the conditions of an allocation received from another sphere of government, 
municipality or organ of state.

Unauthorised expenditure is accounted for as an expense in the statement of financial 
performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the 
statement of financial position.

1.8 Property, plant and equipment

1.8.1 Recognition and measurement 

Property, plant and equipment comprise of computer equipment, furniture and fittings, 
office equipment and motor vehicles and are stated at historical costs less accumulated 
depreciation.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. 
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised 
as part of that equipment.
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When parts of item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate components of property, plant and equipment and depreciated 
accordingly.

1.8.2 Repairs and maintenance

Maintenance and repairs, which neither materially add to the value of assets nor appreciably 
prolong their useful lives, are expensed during the financial year in which they are incurred.

1.8.3 Subsequent expenditures

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that 
future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the CGE 
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

1.8.4 Depreciation

Depreciation is charged against the assets on a straight line basis so as to fully depreciate 
the asset to its net realisable value at the end of its useful live, from the date available for 
use. 

The assets bought specifically for a project and intended for donation at the end of the 
project’s life are depreciated over the life of the contract as the residual value at that point 
will be nil.

The assets residual values, useful lives and methods of deprecation are reviewed and 
adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year-end.

1.8.5 Useful live

The following are the estimated useful lives of the different categories of assets and which 
are depreciated on the straight-line method over the following periods:

Computer equipment 3-5 years

Furniture & fittings 5  years

Office equipment 5 years

Motor Vehicle 4 years

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the 
same basis as owned assets or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

1.8.6 Derecognition

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when 
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

Gains or losses on disposal are included in surplus or deficit for the year and are determined 
by comparing sales proceeds to the carrying amounts.
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1.9 Intangible assets

1.9.1 Initial recognition

Intangible assets consist of computer software. Intangible assets are stated at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Purchased computer software and the direct costs associated with the customisation and 
installation thereof, are capitalised and amortised over estimated useful lives of the assets 
from the date that they are available for use.

1.9.2 Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefit 
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure 
on internally generated brands is recognised in surplus/(loss) as incurred.

1.9.3 Amortisation

Each item is amortised over its useful life once it is available for use. Amortisation is charged 
so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets over their estimated useful lives, using the 
straight-line method.

The estimated useful lives, residual values, and amortisation method are reviewed at each 
year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

1.9.4 Useful lives

Intangible assets other than goodwill are amortised over the following periods, considered 
to be their estimated useful lives: Computer software 2 – 7 years.

1.9.5 Derecognition

The carrying amount of intangible assets is derecognised on disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposal are 
included in surplus or deficit for the year and are determined by comparing sales proceeds 
with the carrying amounts.

1.10 Impairment of non monetary assets

At each reporting date, the CGE reviews the carrying amount of its tangible and intangible 
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered 
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets 
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is 
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount for an individual asset, the recoverable 
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than 
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash generating) is reduced to its 
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are immediately recognised as an expense, unless 
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in which case 
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under the standard.
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Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that 
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash generating 
unit) in prior years.

A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant 
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in which case the reversal of 
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that other standard.

1.11 Leases

1.11.1 Finance leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the underlying asset are 
transferred to the CGE are classified as finance leases. Assets held under finance leases are 
initially recognised as assets at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the 
present value of the minimum lease payments.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the Statement of financial position as 
a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges 
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the 
remaining balance of the liability.

Finance charges are charged directly to the Statement of financial performance. Contingent 
rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

1.11.2 Operating leases

Leases that the CGE enters into as a lessee, and where the lessor retains substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership of the underlying asset, are classified as operating leases. 
Payments made under operating leases are charged against revenue on a straight-line 
basis over the term of the lease.

1.12 Employee benefit

1.12.1 Defined contribution plan

Obligation for contribution to defined contribution provident fund plans are recognised as 
an expense in surplus/(deficit) when they are due.

1.12.2 Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the CGE is demonstrably committed, 
without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to terminate employment 
before the normal retirement date. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are 
recognised if the CGE has made an offer encouraging voluntary redundancy, it is probable 
that the offer will be accepted and the number of acceptances can be estimated reliably.

1.12.3 Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits including annual leave are measured on an undiscounted 
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basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

A provision is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash plans 
if the CGE has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a results of 
past service provided by employee and the obligation can be estimated reliable.

1.13 Financial instruments

1.13.1 Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position 
when the CGE becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

All “regular way” purchases and sales of financial liabilities are recognised using trade date 
accounting.

1.13.2 Measurement

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value, which includes transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition these instruments are measured as set out below.

1.13.2.1  Financial assets

The CGE’s principle financial assets are accounts receivable and cash and cash equivalents, 
which are classified as “loans and receivables”.

1.13.2.2  Accounts receivable

Accounts receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method 
reduced by appropriate allowances for impairment.

Accounts receivables are financial assets that have fixed or determinable payments and 
are not quoted in an active market.

1.13.2.3  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits held with banks, all of 
which are available for use by the CGE unless otherwise stated.

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, comprising original debt less principle 
payments and amortisations.

1.13.2.4  Financial liabilities

The CGE’s principle financial liabilities are accounts payable.

1.13.2.5  Payables

Accounts and other payables are stated at their nominal value.

Short-term payables with no interest rate are measured at the original invoice amount if the 
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effect of discounting on individual transactions is immaterial. 

All payables are settled within 30 days. Where there is a delay in payment it is usually due to 
a dispute on the transaction.

Under such circumstances the time delay is not regarded as being material.

1.13.3  Derecognition

The CGE derecognises a financial asset (or where applicable part thereof) only when:

• the right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

• the CGE retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed 
an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a 
‘pass  through’ arrangement; or

• the Commission has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset 
and either

a. has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or
b. has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and 

rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same customer on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, 
such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability, and 
the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the surplus or deficit for 
the year.

1.13.4  Offset of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of 
financial position only when the CGE has a legally enforceable right to set off recognised 
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously. 

1.14 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 
result of a past event, it is probable that it will be required to settle the obligation, and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required 
to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and 
uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, 
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be 
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recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain 
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured 
reliably.

1.15 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence 
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the CGE; or  a present obligation that arises from 
past events but is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of  resources 
embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation; 
or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

The CGE does not recognised contingent liability as liabilities because they possible 
obligations, as it has yet to be confirmed whether the CGE has a present obligation that 
could lead to an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential; 
or present obligations that do not meet the recognition criteria in this Standard (because 
either it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or 
service potential will be required to settle the obligation, or a sufficiently reliable estimate of 
the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

1.16 Commitments

Commitments are classified as commitments when the CGE commits itself to future 
transactions with external parties.

1.17 Prior period error

Prior period errors are omissions from and misstatements in, the CGE’s financial statements 
for one or more prior periods arising from failure to use/misuse of reliable information that 
was available when the financial statements for that period were issued, and could have 
been reasonably expected to be taken into account in those financial statements.

All errors identified should be corrected retrospectively. The comparative amounts for prior 
periods are restated corresponding periods in which error occurred or if the error occurred 
before that date, restate opening balance of assets, liabilities and net assets for earliest 
period presented.

If impractical to determine period specific effects of the error, restate opening balances for 
earliest period practicable.

1.18 Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or 
to exercise significant influence or join the party in making financial and operating decisions.

A party is related to a Commission if directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, 
the party controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Commission

Key management is defined as being individuals with the authority and responsibility for 
planning, directing and controlling activities of the CGE. All individuals from Management 
up to the Commissioners are key management individuals in their dealings with the CGE.
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Other related party transactions are also disclosed in terms of the requirements of the 
standard. The objective of the standard and financial statement is to provide relevant 
and reliable information and therefore materiality is considered in the disclosure of these 
transactions.

1.19 Comparatives

In order to conform to changes, comparative figures have been adjusted, where necessary. 
The comparative figures shown in these financial statements are limited to the figures shown 
in the previous year’s audited financial statements and such other comparative figures that  
may reasonably have available for reporting.

1.20 Events after the reporting date

All adjusting events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between reporting date 
and the date when the financial statements are issued have been reported and adjusted 
for in the financial statements.

Those events that are indicative of conditions that came into existence subsequent to 
reporting date, have not been adjusted for.
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2011

2011 2010

2  Revenue
2   Revenue from non-exchange    
     transactions  51,949,000  49,112,000 

3    Exchange revenue Restated
Interest received  6,160  9,989 
Donation received  127,805  4,936 
Impairment reversal (recovered)  65,735  -   
Sundry income  7,272  11,552 

 206,972  26,477 

4    Administrative expenses Restated
General expenses  2,097,829  3,504,863 
Sundry operating expenses  6,029,648  4,346,741 
Printing and photocopying  1,437,380  613,111 
Postal, telecom and delivery fees  1,961,218  2,610,993 
Publicity functions and conference  819,731  204,070 
Audit fees  1,599,049  1,933,613 
Consulting fees  1,170,117  886,649 

 15,114,972  14,100,041 

5    Personnel Restated
Basic  21,428,809  21,085,620 
Medical aid-company contribution  432,670  404,454 
Unemployment Insurance Fund  120,047  117,291 
Bonus leave and provision for leave pay 
(Note 14.1)  1,609,898  555,062 
Overtime  52,959  97,719 
Provident fund-company contribution  2,542,220  2,584,746 
Allowances  3,172,514  4,380,791 
Company contribution other (Note 14.8)  578,443  1,496,892 

 29,937,559  30,722,575 

Note:
The Commissioners and key management's 
remuneration is included in Note 16 as 
contained in this report.
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2011

2011 2010

6    Other operating expenses Restated
Staff training and development  15,938  -   
Legal fees  896,738  1,282,531 
Maintenance, repairs and running costs 155,598    87,323 
-Property and buildings  11,550  3,568 
-Other maintenance repairs and running 
costs

 144,048  83,756 

Entertainment  211,668  -   
Impairment of debtors (Note 10)  -    695,215 
Operating lease expenses (Note 14.6)  369,350  377,396 

 1,649,292  2,442,466 

7    Finance cost Restated
Finance lease cost  -    227,708 
Imputed interest  83,129  95,401 
Bank interest paid  2,138  7,805 

 85,267  330,914 

8    Assets written off (Note 11)
Cost  1,756,289  596,513 
Accumulated depreciation  (1,641,667)  (411,310) 
Book value  114,622  185,203 
Proceeds  2,000  -   
Gain on disposal  (112,622)  (185,203) 

9    Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank (Note 14.5)  8,865,387  1,600,362 
Cash on hand  5,114  10,708 

 8,870,501  1,611,070 

10  Receivables
Other receivables  824,812  785,384 
Less: Impairment allowance  (719,649)  (785,384) 

 105,163  -   
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2011

2011 2010

10.1 Receivables: Ageing
Current (0 - 30 days)  74,950  -   
31 - 60 days  30,213  -   
61 - 90 days  -    -   
91 - 120 days  -    -   
121 - 365 days  -    182,464 
+365 days  719,649  602,920 

 824,812  785,384 

10.2  Impairment allowance: Ageing
121 - 365 days -    182,464 
+365 days  719,649  602,920 

 719,649  785,384 

10.3 Reconciliation of impairment allowance
Balance at beginning of year  785,384  90,170 
Contribution to allowance (Note 6)  -    695,214 
Impairment debts written off against 
provision

 -    -   

Recovered  (65,736)  -   
 719,649  785,384 
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2011

2011 2010

11.1 Property, Plant and Equipment at  
        deemed cost

Property, Plant and Equipment 
recognised at deemed cost 
Office furniture  -    58,883 
Net assets  -    58,883 

11.2 Intangible assets      2011
Software

Reconciliation of carrying value

Opening net carrying amount  25,956 
Gross carrying amount  1,187,838 
Accumulated amortisation  (1,161,882)

Additions  -   

Disposals & Adjustments
Carrying Amount  -   
-Cost of disposal  696,995 
-Accumulated depreciation of disposal  (696,995)

Amortisation  (25,956)

Closing net carrying amount  -   

Gross carrying amount  490,843 
Accumulated amortisation  (490,843)
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2011

2010

11.3 Intangible assets
Software

Reconciliation of carrying value

Opening net carrying amount  391,878 
Gross carrying amount  1,187,836 
Accumulated amortisation  (795,958)

Additions  -   

Amortisation  (365,924)

Closing net carrying amount  25,956 
Gross carrying amount  1,187,838 
Accumulated amortisation  (1,161,882)

11.4 During 2011 financial year end the following PPE items were fully depreciated and  
        still in use:

2011 2010

Amount
Office equipment  116,977 
Office furniture  533,670 
Computer equipment  2,589,066 
Computer software  490,843 

 3,730,556 

12    Exchange Payables  Restated 
Trade creditors (Note 14.6)  4,215,043  4,556,992 

Payroll creditors (Note 14.1)  661,107  415,438 
South African Revenue Service  4,502  468,378 

 4,880,652  5,440,808 
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2011

2011 2010

13    Provisions  Restated 
Provision for salary increases  309,183  -   
Provision for salary bonus  421,179  391,597 
Provision for workmens compensation  381,497  292,845 
Provision for SARS interest and penalties 
(Note 14.6.1)  496,206  -   
Provision for municipal charges (Note 
14.2)  1,727,990  -   
Provision for legal claims (Note 19.3)  1,419,091  1,335,963 

 4,755,144  2,020,405 

Provision for annual bonus Annual bonus Annual bonus

Balance at 1 April 2010  391,597  361,613 
Contribution to provision:
Expenditure incurred  391,195  29,984 
Utilised during the year  (361,613)  -   

 421,179  391,597 
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14.  Prior period errors

The following prior period errors have been identified and the specific effect on financial 
statements accordingly disclosed. These errors have been corrected and comparatives 
restated accordingly.

Effects on 2010 financial statements are as follows:

These prior period errors have no tax effect as CGE is exempt in terms of the Income Tax Act

14.1.  Provision for leave pay

In terms of PPR & R Annexure A page 49 paragraph 2 and 7, only 10 days of the cumulative 
leave can be carried beyond end of June each year, the remainder will be forfeited, and 
the remaining leave days, if any, must be taken not later than six months after the expiry 
date.

CGE did not apply the leave policy as per the PPR & R, as a result, provision for leave was 
overstated. 

The management has decided to forfeit all the leave that should have been forfeited in 
prior years.

The earliest period practicable for CGE is 1 January 2010, The reason for this period was that 
CGE’ s leave records did not permit the application of retrospective adjustments further 
than 1 January 2010. The effect of the correction of the error on the results for 2010 and 2009 
is as follows:

Decrease in provision for leave 2 416 402
Increase in opening accumulated surplus/(deficit) for 2009 (2 416 402)

Adjustment against opening accumulated surplus (deficit) for 2011 3 166 083
Adjustment against opening accumulated surplus (deficit) for 2009 2 416 402
Decreased in employee costs for 2010 749 681
Decreased in provision for leave for 2010 749 681

14.2.  Provision for municipal services

During 2010/11 financial year end after consultation with DPW, we noted that, provision for 
municipal services was understated. The understatement was detected by reconciling the 
amount recorded in the general ledger and the confirmation of balances from DPW. The 
effect of the correction of the error on the results on 2010 is as follows:

Increased in acruals (708 713)
Increased in operating expenses (708 713)

Decreased in acruals 1 395 266
Increased in provisions (1 395 266)
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14.3.  Exchange revenue

Being the correction of credit note not recorded in the accounting records. The effect of 
the correction of the error on the results on 2010 is as follows:

Decreased in payables 12 113
Decreased in administrative expense 12 113

14.4.  Depreciation and amortisation expense

This error relates to the depreciation that was erroneously recorded in the general ledger, 
as a result the depreciation was overstated. The effect of the correction of the error on the 
results on 2010 is as follows:

Increased in depreciation (Software) (616)
Decreased in depreciation (Computer equipment) 31 156
Decreased in depreciation (Office equipment) 10 942
Decreased in depreciation (Fruniture) 4 102
Increased in profit 45 584

14.5. Cash and cash equivalents

Being the correction of receipt not recorded in the correct accounting period. The effect of 
the correction of the error on the results on 2010 is as follows:

Increased in cash and cash equivalent 10 926
Increased in other income 10 926

14.6. Exchange payables

Being the correction of omitted invoices in prior years. The effect of the correction of the 
error on the results on 2010 is as follows:

Increased in payments in 2009 financial year (13 093)
Decreased in opening accumulated surplus for 2010 13 093

Increased in operating lease expenses (4 002)
Increase in payments (4 002)

Increased in interest expenses (4 169)
Increased in payables (4 169)

Decreased in operating expenses (Reversal of income) 2 969
Decreased in payables 2 969
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14.6.1 South African Receiver of Revenue Services

Recording of prior year interest and penalties charged by South African Receiver of Revenue 
Services. The effect of the correction of the error on the results on 2010 is as follows:

Increased in payables (70 721)
Decreased in accumulated surplus(deficit) 70 721

14.6.2 Accruals

Being reversal of over provision on accruals. The effect of the correction of the error on the 
results on 2010 is as follows:

Decreased in payables 87 313
Increased in accumulated surpluhhs(deficit) 87 313

14.6.3 Provision for salary claim

Being reversal of accrual not reversed when the actual payment was made. The effect of 
the correction of the error on the results on 2010 is as follows:

Decreased in payable 159 164
Increased in accumulated surplus(deficit) (159 164)

14.7 Provision for workmen’s compensation

Compensation for Injuries and Diseases Act has not been paid to the compensation 
commission. The full amount is payable upon finalisation of the registration.

Increase in provisions (292,845)
Increase in accumulated surplus/(deficit) (201,870)
Increase in expenditure  (90,975)

14.8 Provision for legal claims

The CGE entered into a memorandum of understanding (MOU) with the Human Rights 
Commission and the Office of the Public Protector to be jointly and severally liable in a 
program funded by the Euhropean Union named Civil Society Advocacy Programme 
(CSAP). This provision was not recorded in the accounting records for the CGE.

The effect of the correction of the error on the results on 2010 is as follows:

Increase in provisions (1,240,561)
Decrease in accumulated surplus/(deficit) 1,335,963
Increase in expenditure  (95,401)
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14.9. Reconciliation

Opening accumulated surplus(deficit) (2, 030, 735)
14.1 Provision for leave 3, 166, 083
14.2 Provision for municipal services (708, 713)
14.3 Other income 12, 113
14.4 Accumulated depreciation 45, 585
14.5 Cash and cash equivalents 10, 926
14.6 Payables 163, 922
14.7 Provision for workmens compensation (292, 845)
14.8 Provision for legal claims (1,335, 963)
Restated balance (969, 627)

15. Net cash flow from operating activities 

2011 2010 
Restated

Surplus(Deficit) for the year 2 574 849 (2 329 703)
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation 2 681 411 3 686 980
(Gain) Loss on sale of assets 112 622 185 203
Contribution of provision 2 734 739 216 361
Finance cost - 19 373
Impaiment loss(Reversal of impaiment loss - 695 215
Other Income - (4 936)
Interest - (9 989)
Operating surplus(deficit) before working 
capital changes

8 103 621 2 458 504

(Increase)/Decrease in receivables (105 162) (186 898)
(Increase)/Decrease in payables (560 137) (612 367)
Cash generated by/(utalisedin) operations 7 438 322 1 659 239

16.  Related parties

The CGE is a schedule 1 Constitutional Institution in terms of the Public Finance Management 
Act (Act 1 of 1999 as amended). Although the CGE is an independent institution, created 
under chapter 9 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, the CGE has a significant 
number of related parties being entities that fall within the national sphere of government.

Unless specifically disclosed, these transactions are concluded on an arm's length basis. 
There are no restrictions in the CGE's capacity to transact with any entity.

16.1. Key management

Fees paid to commission and executive management remuneration  
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COMMISSIONERS Salaries 2011 
Allowances

Total 2010 
Total

TE Maitse 512, 750 84, 694 597, 444 654, 499
JL Hicks 444,197 95, 684 539, 881 661, 791
B Khumalo - - - 127, 809
NP Gasa (Resigned 03 August 2009) - - - 257, 061
DM Shozi 625, 882 65, 300 691, 182 768, 818
YN Abrahams 527, 790 71, 308 599, 098 651, 976
NEP Loyilane 519, 144 81, 100 600, 244 715, 565
NS Khutsoane (Resigned: 04 
December 2010) 235, 888 5, 344 241, 232 407,  506
R Shabodien (Resigned 31 October 
2010) 206, 402 9, 100 215, 502 389, 188
KV Meruti 321, 384 76, 200 397, 584 391, 355
A Keet (Resigned: 31 August 2010) 185, 552 8, 400 193, 952 486, 355
Total 3, 578, 989 497, 130 4, 076 119 5, 511, 923

MANAGEMENT Salaries 2011 
Allowances

Total 2010 
Total

Keketso Maema 683 465 111 791 795 256 743 323
Moshabi Putu 660 024 60 000 720 024 396 853
Venet Napo 587 535 72 493 660 029 662 283
Joan De Klerk 600 193 60 000 660 193 631 090
Victor Mavhidula 587 773 70 992 658 765 684 974
Tasneem Du Pont 588 071 72 000 660 071 662 574
MCC Majake - - - 1 599 706
Total 3 707 062 447 276 4 154 338 5 380 803

17.  Irregular expenditure

The CGE did not have supply chain management unit as required by PFMA Act and Treasury 
Regulations, as a results Irregular expenditure amounting to R38 008 131 was incurred. This 
amount represents an amount paid to suppliers in contravention with the SCM policy. 

17.1 Reconciliation Irregular expenditure
Opening balance:
2008/2009 financial year  18,957,678 
2009/2010 financial year  8,710,751 
Expenditure incurred in contravention with SCM Policy and other 
relevant acts and regulations

 10,339,703 

Less Condonation  -   
Total irregular expenditure incurred  38 008 131 
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18   Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
 

Interest and penalties paid  204,275
Bank interest  2,138 
Interest on lease equipment  576 

 206,989 

19.  Risk Management

Liquidity risk

The CGE’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The 
CGE manages the liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and the 
cash flows arising from allocations by National Treasury.

Interest rate risk

The CGE’s exposure to the interest rate is limited, as the CGE has no significant interest 
bearing liabilities.

Liquidity risk

The financial liabilities maturity analysis of the CGE, for the reporting period shows contractual 
cash outflows on an undiscounted basis as below

Liquidity risk (continues)

Financial 
Instrument

Current 
interest 
rate

Due in less 
than a 
year

Due in 
one to two 
years

Due in two 
to three 
years

Due in 
three to 
four years

Due after 
five years

Trade 
and other 
payables

8.5% 4 880 652 - - - -

Credit risk
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade receivables. The CGE 
only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to 
any other counter party.

Currency risk
Foreign exchange rate risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets 
and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations. The CGE is not exposed to any 
material foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures. The CGE does not 
hedge foreign exchange fluctuations.

Price Risk
The Commission is not exposed to equity securities price risk because there are no investments 
held by the CGE and classified as either for sale or at fair value through surplus or deficit.
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20.  Events after the reporting date

There were no reportable subsequent events after reporting date.

21.  Contingent liabilities 

21.1  Department of Public Works

The Commission, for the purposes of office accommodation, occupies offices whose lease 
contracts are entered into with third party landlords through assistance and administrative 
support of the Department of Public Works(hereinafter DPW) . The relationship between 
the lessor and lessee are governed through the lease agreements whilst the relationship 
between the Commission and DPW are regulated through rules and/or prescripts determined 
by National Treasury which includes a Framework devolving budgets to finance the rental 
fees. In terms of the framework, user departments are responsible for the cost and budget 
in relation to the rental fees. In this regard, the budget that relates to the Commission’s 
rental fees was understandably devolved to Department of Justice and Constitutional 
Development (Hereinafter DoJ) at commencement of the framework. According to this 
framework, by all necessary implications the CGE is directly liable for rental fees incurred 
only in instances that contracts are entered into without securing the related funding.

At reporting date, the DPW has indicated an existence of a liability with regards to some 
premises currently occupied by the Commission for which the rental fees are recoupable 
by DPW from the Commission. It is not certain how the contracts came into being without 
having funds secured by the CGE or whether or not the lease contracts relating to the claim 
formed part of the baseline budget of DoJ at the inception of the framework in 2006. These 
factors and circumstances creates an uncertainty of the existence of a liability relating to a 
claim of R5 205 392 by DPW.

21.2  Axolute Investments CC

Axolute Investments CC was contracted by the CGE to provide information technology 
services on a contract effective during the 2007-2009 reporting period. The CGE has 
unilaterally cancelled the contract for reasons of improper procurement procedures. The 
Service provider has instituted litigation proceedings against the CGE for claims amounting 
to R814,192.56, representing fees for the remainder of the contract. No provision has been 
made in the Annual Financial Statements as management believes that there are good 
prospects of defending the case. The matter has been postponed to a date still to be 
determined by the South Gauteng Court.

21.3  Civil Society Advocacy Programme (CSAP)

The CGE entered into a memorandum of understanding (MOU) with the Human Rights 
Commission and the Office of the Public Protector to be jointly and severally liable in a 
program funded by the European Union named Civil Society Advocacy Programme (CSAP). 
During the subsistence of this programme, expenses were incurred for services rendered by 
third parties and have not been paid. The outstanding principal balance amounts to R3.6 
million. Over the term of the purported default to year end, an interest charge of R657, 271 
is estimated, calculated at repurchase rate as determined by the South African Reserve 
bank (SARB) from time to time. Accordingly and in terms of the MOU, at balance sheet 
date, the parties are individually indebted to the third part by a 33,3% or an equivalent of 
R1,419,91. The residue 66.7% of the joint and several liability therefore stands at R2.8 million 



132

ANNUAL REPORT 2010-2011
 Commission for Gender Equality  

2010 - 2011 2010 - 2011

at the reporting date

22. Reconciliation of the budget with surplus deficit in the statement of financial       performance.

Surplus(Deficit) for the year  2 574 849 2 574 849
Adjustments for:
Admin expenses 3 085 236
Capital expenditure under spent (1 565 330)
Depreciation not budget for 2 681 411
Operating expenses over spent (1 751 073)
Personal over spent (5 327 757)
Imputed interest 83 128
Staff training and development under spent 15 938
Assets written off 112 622
Provision for workmen’s compensation 90 975
Approved budget -

• Both the budget and actual amount are prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting.

• Approved budget amounts were not adjusted during the financial year.

2010

23    World Cup     
        expenditure

Bafana Bafana jerseys  -    40,000 
Distribution of T-shirts Amount

Accounting Officer  1  400 
Senior Management  2  800 
Other staff employees  97  38,800 
Closing balance  100  40,000 

The Bafana Bafana jerseys were given to employees in December 2009, to wear to work on 
Fridays to show our support for Bafana Bafana and to contribute to team building and staff 
morale. There were no further expenses were incurred for the world cup.

24.  Financial Instruments

Categories of financial instruments

Except as detailed in the following table, CGE management considers that the carrying 
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the financial 
statements approximate their fair values:
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2011 2010

Notes R’ 000 R’000
Current financial assets
Carrying amount 8, 975, 663 1, 611, 070

Cash and cash equivalents 9 8, 870, 501 1, 611, 070
Trade receivable 10 105,162 0
Current financial liabilities
Carrying amount
Trade and other payables 12 4, 755, 145 2, 020, 405

2011 2010

Notes R’000 R’000

Fair value 8,975, 663 1, 611, 070

Cash and cash equivalents 9 8, 870, 501 1, 611,070
Trade receivables 10 105, 162 0

Fair value

Trade and other payables 12 4, 755, 145 2, 020, 405

Fair values

As indicated above CGE's financial instruments consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, 
trade and other receivables and trade and other payables. No financial instruments were 
carried at an amount in excess of its fair value and fair values could be reliably measured 
for all financial instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the entities Statement of Financial 
Position when the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The 
following methods and assumptions are used to determine the fair value of each class of 
financial instruments:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and are subject to an insignificant risk 
of changes in value. These are initially and subsequently recorded at fair value. The carrying 
amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value due to the relatively short-
term maturity of these financial assets.
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Accounts receivable

Trade and other receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method, less any impairment losses. The carrying amount of accounts 
receivable, net of allowance for bad debt, approximates fair value due to the relatively 
short-term maturity of these financial assets.

Accounts payable

Trade and other payables are stated at amortised cost, which approximates their fair value 
due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial liabilities.

Financial instrument risk

In the course of the CGE operations it is exposed to market, interest rate, credit, and liquidity 
risk. The risk management process relating to each of these risks is discussed under the 
headings below:

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

CGE does not initiate any transactions with international parties and is therefore not exposed 
to any exchange risk due to currency fluctuations. All transactions are denominated in South 
African Rand with local vendors.

Price risk

CGE is not exposed to equity securities price risk because it does not have investments held 
and classified as financial assets at fair value through surplus / deficit on the Stat   ement of 
Financial Position. CGE is not exposed to commodity price risk.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As CGE does not have significant interest bearing liabilities, the expense and cash flows are 
not substantially dependent on changes in market interest rates.
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9. Glossary of Acronyms and Abbreviations

AIDS Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome
ANCRA Association for Community and Rural Advancement
AGDI African Gender and Development Index
AGSA Auditor-General of South Africa
ASA Advertising Standards Authority of South Africa
AU African Union
CBO Community-Based Organisation
CEE Commission for Employment Equity
CEO Chief Executive Officer
CEDAW The Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of  Discrimination  against 

Women
CFO Chief Financial Officer
CGE Commission for Gender Equality
COO Chief Operations Officer
CLR Cultural and Linguistic Rights
CSO Civil Society Organisation
CSW United National Commission on the Status of Women
CWG CEDAW Working Group
DWAFD&GG Department of Water and Forestry and Good Governance
DOJCD Department of Justice and Constitutional Development
DOL Department of Labour
DLRN Distance Learning Resource Network
DVA Domestic Violence Act of 1998
EE Employment Equity
FBO Faith-based Organisation
FGM Female Genital Mutilation
GB Gender Barometer 
GBV Gender-based Violence
GCIS Government Communication and Information System
HIV Human Immunodeficiency Virus
HOD Head of Department
ICASA Independent Communications Authority of South Africa
IEC Electoral Commission of South Africa
ISBN International Standard Book Number
IT Information Technology
KZN KwaZulu-Natal
LGBTI Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgendered and Inter-sexed
LOC Local Organising Committee (World Cup 2010)
MANCO Management Committee
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MDDA Media and Diversity Development Agency
MDG Millennium Development Goals
MMA Media Monitoring Africa
MOU Memorandum of Understanding
NCOP National Council of Provinces
NA National Assembly
Nersa National Energy Regulator of South Africa
NGM National Gender Machinery
NGO Non-governmental Organisation
NPA National Prosecuting Authority
NVAW Network on Violence against Women
OSW Office on the Status of Women
OVC Orphaned and Vulnerable Children
PEI Public Education and Information Programme
PEPUDA Promotion of Equality and Prevention of Unfair Discrimination Act
PEU Professional Education Union
PGM Provincial Gender Machinery
PLWHA People Living with HIV and AIDS
POWA People Opposing Women Abuse
PPR&R Procedures, Policies, Rules and Regulations
PUPA Passion Unlimited Peers in Action
PWMSA Progressive Women’s Movement of South Africa
SA South Africa
SABC South African Broadcasting Corporation
SACC South African Council of Churches
SADC Southern African Development Community
SALGA South African Local Government Association
Sawid South African Women in Dialogue
SCA Supreme Courts of Appeal
SP Strategic Planning
UN United Nations
UNIFEM United Nations Development Fund for Women
UNFPA United Nations Population Fund
UNHCR United Nations High Commission for Refugees
UNPF United Nations Population Fund
WARD Women in Agricultural and Rural Development
WCWNVAW Western Cape Women’s Network on Violence against Women
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